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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
BETT BETF T BT BETT BETFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
£ | Results

BB AR Profit before taxation 66,884 56,652 106,418 226,585 164,487
% (ZH) /R Income tax (expense)/credit (5,220) 695 (2,740) (4,346) (560)
FEEGH Profit for the year 61,664 57,347 103,678 222,239 163,927

REEHA,/ (B18) BER Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to
RARERBEA Equity holders of the Company 56,700 59,849 104,825 222,239 163,927
DERRER Minority interest 4,964 (2,502) (1,147) — =
FEERT Profit for the year 61,664 57,347 103,678 222,239 163,927

A5 v RE 25 5N AR i A
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BEET
HK$ Ten Thousand - 25,000
—+ 20,000
+ 15,000
+ 10,000
5,67()] 5,985]
| | | | 1 0

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
BEFTT BETT BETT BT BETFIT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFE Net assets
ME - BEREE Property, plant and equipment 8,396 8,838 7,299 7,570 6,659
REME Investment properties 64,722 68,721 76,713 90,512 86,713
HEL R I ERE Leasehold land and land use rights 19,100 18,628 18,335 18,041 17,748
HEEHIEE Jointly controlled entities 519,355 622,898 741,488 939,836 1,143,062
=N Associates 67,357 58,345 63,270 65,106 36,841
HEESHEE Available-for-sale financial assets — 359,349 620,768 1,140,870 576,576
BEEPEES  F LT Held-to-maturity debt securities, unlisted 11,009 — — — —
HthEE Other asset 58,050 — — — —
EEFEHEE Deferred income tax assets — 550 526 525 673
REEEFHE Net current assets 480,280 297,879 243,518 520,214 441,057
RITER Bank borrowings — (95,810) (47,929) (143,588) (53,946)
EEREHEE Deferred income tax liabilities (312) (199) (29,316) (6,748) (7,201)
EEEE Net assets 1,227,957 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182
#EnaE Total equity
R Share capital 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429 459,429
HifgES Other reserves 678,331 821,892 1,129,435 1,919,783 1,562,840
REBER Retained profits
BIKKE Proposed dividend — 13,783 18,377 27,566 13,783
Hith Others 73,716 29,732 87,431 224,531 212,130
RERENEEERNR Amount recognised directly in equity
BEHENERBEE relating to non-current asset classified
EENFTE as held-for-sale — — — 1,029 =
ADRERBEA Total equity attributable to equity
bR A5 holders of the Company 1,211,476 1,324,836 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182
DHRRES Minority interest 16,481 14,363 — — =
ekt Total equity 1,227,957 1,339,199 1,694,672 2,632,338 2,248,182

A5 ) RE 2 5N B A HE 2 4 75

TOTAL EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

BEEET
HK$ Million

2,632 I
1,695 2
‘ I

1,322
‘ l

2,248

T 3,000

+ 2,500

1

- 2,000

1

- 1,500

1

- 1,000

+ 500

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

—ERN\F > FEEHNCHEHEEHR
AR HERRERSENERSENERE
BH o PEAMERTFANFERPRRT
EXRBRLENTANEE  BBRDERTT
BERER - BHEAIIMEMNEERE
REERBEYR  HIREFR  EBRSEE
BE BAKFERY -

MERE

—EENE FAEFAEREEZESZERA
L4 E R REH163938 T ' ER=-ZFZE+
FTEK26.2% o FRRERZE FI B EE35.681l

T {£3Z 5. % Mr Ding Shi Da

In 2008, the global financial crisis hard hit the economies around
the world, and its negative impacts on the global economy still
remain obvious. In this unusual time, however, Mainland China
has managed to surmount the adverse impact of severe natural
disasters and maintained a stable and relatively rapid growth.
Despite such complicated domestic and external economic
environment, the Group has actively overcome the hardship and
has maintained a healthy development and satisfactory
earnings.

OPERATING RESULTS

In 2008, the Group recorded an audited consolidated profit
attributable to equity holders of HK$163.93 million, a decrease
of 26.2% from that of 2007. Basic earnings per share amounted
to 35.68 HK cents.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Rk ()

MR =TT L FHE300BRELERE
B3 B R A TR0 825 UL B 154,966 B T
REBEHEATHERBEABREN KRB
0B THELEE L ERNE  —BEENEMN
REFBEABLGEARABE ST LE L
F0.3% °

Ji 8.

EERRBENR -_ZEZNFRATNBEITZ
RERBFASLEBREBZ_ZZ/N\F+
“A=Et+-HALEFEZREREEREBER
Bl - FHB¥13,782,860 (ZEE L
FEIRESREBERBE UL GHBY
9,188,573 T R AREIR E SR BAR B HE 4L
B HEY18,377,1467T) o MEBEB - LR
ERR-_ZEZNFLATELtHRZAIKE ©

S 255 1]
RAT R

REEZBEFH36.75%Em N EPFIEFRIRTT
SEETE AR RFIEERTER -

TEEN\FHASHIESHTBEER
B BRAREEERFAT¥EARME - 5
BEANEEZ BEWNL > NEBHPRITE
KEEIHF165%MIBR - BEFBEEBE
16,4668 JT ©

HATEANBZIBERALENTERERS
RMMmSHANEEBERMEERNNRRER
KEERITE  BEFMBEIBRRITEENESRR
TEBBFERFRENIER BB TEEN
R BHEEEHBENELIZ I SREHE
TERNWEETE - BPECESHTEAER
w2 —EEN\FHEFAHHARY36,941
Ex BEBR-ZEZLFNGREFIBEIOAR
#536,921 B LB R£0.1% + TEHWNEFBER
RITEERAFERFENREERRRRE
i o

OPERATING RESULTS (Continued)

After deducting the non-recurring gain of HK$49.66 million from
the disposal of 36 million shares of Huaneng Power International,
Inc.and the share of results of an associated company of HK$9.1
million for the gain on the disposal of the toll road investment
in 2007, the consolidated profit attributable to equity holders
in 2008 rose by 0.3% as compared to that of 2007.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 18th
June 2009 the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860 for the year ended 31st
December 2008 (2007: special dividend of 2 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$9,188,573 and final dividend of 4 HK
cents per ordinary share totaling HK$18,377,146).The proposed
dividend, if approved, will be paid on or before 17th July 2009.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Banking Business

The Group, through its 36.75% interest in the Xiamen
International Bank Group, conducts banking business in
Mainland China and Macao.

In 2008, major financial markets around the world experienced
extreme volatilities, particularly in the second half of the year,
triggered by the collapse of Lehman Brothers. Nevertheless, the
banking business of the Group was still able to attain a 16.5%
growth in its profit after taxation which amounted to HK$164.66
million.

Although Mainland China suffered from natural disasters, and
global economies, including Hong Kong and Macao, were
adversely affected by the turbulence of global financial markets,
the traditional banking business of Xiamen International Bank
continued to maintain a satisfactory growth and achieved
encouraging performance. Its investment-related businesses,
however, were negatively affected by the fallout of the financial
crisis. For the year of 2008, Xiamen International Bank’s
consolidated net profit prepared under China Accounting
Standards went up by 0.1% to RMB369.41 million from
RMB369.21 million in 2007.This is mainly due to the provision
for impairment loss against its investment portfolio by Xiamen
International Bank Group during the year.
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MATHB ()

EEFR EFERETEENAEELZ
ZETLFERERN26%  EARK440.9(2
T BFERREFPERD A ARY279.7
BETRARE3752ER 2B tF
R R £6.3%8K2.2% o 13 IR 3R = 61 3R R
#16.4% Ltk —EZLFRFDH27% o FEF
KARFEERASFUADALEFER
52.2%J% 8.8% °

EREBIASERHETHNE  PERNM
MEBEBRCHBEDE  HOWEBRET
B FEFRBAARYERAKNEE
HHARERHEELEERARRBEE
I SHEHERNBHNERNEREER - B
FBERRETEESEREERENEL - #
BEBRE HESERE  BREBOR
HIER o

((3E 37

rEBE2EMBARBREREERAR ((FH
EREDRB8Z-_ZENF+-A=+—H
IENHERBABEIMEL  B-2FtHE
EIHARI R B R B 776 B U T PR 78% © ¥4&
THREIZEANRETSEZNZAHTHE
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THEEANKE  FRFABRRRIER
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MBEXEBRE BEFNAFNBERNE
BER -

BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Banking Business (Continued)

During the year under review, the total assets of Xiamen
International Bank Group grew by about 2.6% to RMB44.09
billion. Loans to customers and customers’ deposits were
RMB27.97 billion and RMB37.52 billion respectively, an increase
of 6.3% and 2.2% respectively as compared to those at the end
of 2007.The return on average equity was about 16.4%, a
decrease of 2.7% as compared to that of 2007.The net interest
income and the net fee and commission income have increased
by 52.2% and 8.8% respectively as compared to those of last
year.

The recession of global economy has led to the slowdown of
business activities. Mainland China’s pace of economic growth
has decelerated apparently with sharply decreased exports.In
order to alleviate the impact of the financial crisis, the central
government of Mainland China rolled out massive economic
stimulus package and eased its monetary policy. |t is anticipated
that Mainland China will still have a steady growth this year.
Xiamen International Bank Group will adjust its business
strategies and will continue to invest in a prudent manner in
order to cope with the changes in operating environment, to
ensure a long-term growth of its business.

Insurance Business

Min Xin Insurance Company Limited (“MXIC"), the Group’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, registered a net profit after tax of
HK$1.71 million for the year ended 31st December 2008, a
decrease of 78% from HK$7.76 million in 2007. Such adverse
result was mainly due to sluggish insurance market premium
rate sustaining in the previous few years. MXIC, however, was
timely in fine tuning its underwriting strategy to capture the
turnaround of the market during the second half of the year
resulting in a favorable top line growth.

Despite the uncertain economic outlook, MXIC will persevere
in securing growth in a profitable manner by maintaining a
tactful business strategy.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment

The property development and investment business of the
Group includes the real estate development business and the
leasing of certain investment properties in Mainland China.In
2008, the property development and investment business
reported a loss after taxation of HK$7.5 million as compared to
the profit after taxation of HK$1.54 million of last year.

Since the successful bidding through public auction of a piece
of land in Suzhou (the “Suzhou Project”) in early 2007, the Group
has set up a wholly-owned subsidiary, Minxin (Suzhou) Property
Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin Suzhou”) to undertake the real
estate development business in Mainland China.In 2008, Minxin
Suzhou recorded a loss of RMB8.51 million (including the
amortisation of land use right of RMB4.24 million), as compared
to a loss of RMB5.46 million (including the amortisation of land
use right of RMB3.18 million) for 2007.

During the year under review, the central government of
Mainland China swiftly adjusted its macro-control measures to
avoid overheating of its real estate industry to the active
promotion of the steady and healthy development of the
industry,and officially designated the real estate industry as one
of the "key pillar industries of national economy” Minxin Suzhou
timely adjusted the progress of various work to meet the
changing macro economic policies and the local real estate
market in Suzhou, in particular, the construction progress of the
surrounding ecology park of the Suzhou Project. It also actively
made application for the construction work of its real estate
development projects. Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
Minxin Suzhou has obtained the construction permit for the
commencement of the construction work. Currently, the
construction work for the Suzhou Project has been progressing
well, and it is targeted to complete the construction of the main
structure by the end of 2009. It has been planned that the
Suzhou Project, which has a total construction area of about
81,000 square metres, will build 55 blocks with a total of 218
low density residential units.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)
Property Development and Investment (Continued)

Apart from generating a steady rental income to the Group, the
Group’s investment properties and car parks in Fuzhou, Fujian
Province (the “Fuzhou Property”) represent growing capital
value in the long term and can also act as quality securities for
acquiring longer term finance. Benefiting from the substantial
increase in rental following the renewal of lease, the Fuzhou
Property recorded an increase of 7.8% in rental income to
RMB2.62 million from RMB2.43 million in 2007. As at 31st
December 2008, the Fuzhou Property reported a rise of 1.8% in
its fair value to HK$38.71 million as compared to that at 31st
December 2007. Accordingly, the Group recognised a fair value
gain of HK$0.7 million, as compared to HK$9.7 million in 2007.

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares”)

The global financial crisis has caused turbulence to A-Share
market in Mainland China. As at the end of 2008, the Shanghai
Composite Index dropped by about 3,440 points as compared
to that of 2007.The closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-share also
fell to RMB6.92 per share as at 31st December 2008 from
RMB14.84 per share as at 31st December 2007.The fair value of
the Group’s investment in 72 million Huaneng Shares estimated
with reference to the closing bid price of Huaneng’s A-Share
reduced by about RMB570.24 million to RMB498.24 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$565.8 million) as compared to
that at the end of 2007.With Huaneng Shares classified as a long
term available-for-sale financial asset of the Group, the loss of
about HK$575.07 million arising from the change in its fair value
(2007: fair value gain of about HK$688.04 million) was directly
recognised in the investment revaluation reserve.

In 2008, the Group received a final dividend for 2007 of RMBO0.3
per share from Huaneng, generating a dividend income of
HK$24.48 million (2007: RMB0.28 per share totaling HK$31
million).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Investment in Huaneng Power International, Inc.
(“Huaneng Shares”) (Continued)

On 1st April 2009, Huaneng announced its results under the
China Accounting Standards for 2008. Notwithstanding the
growth in its operating income by 34.5% when compared to that
of 2007, the significant increase in the fuel prices has led to the
reduction in gross profit, resulting in a loss of RMB0.31 per share
as compared to an earnings per share of RMBO0.5 for 2007. With
its accumulated undistributed profits, Huaneng intends to
distribute 2008 final cash dividend of RMBO.1 per share in order
to provide returns to the shareholders.

High-Tech Investments

Min Faith Investments Limited (“Min Faith”), an investment of
the Group engaging in the manufacturing of industrial digital
instruments through its subsidiaries in Mainland China, has
registered another extraordinary year of profit after taxation of
HK$14.86 million in 2008, a slight decrease of 2.3% from the
record profit after taxation of HK$15.21 million in 2007. Amid
the economic downturn worldwide, Min Faith is facing a difficult
year in 2009. It will strive to maintain its lead in the industrial
digital instrumentation market and further exploit the
opportunities of diversification and expansion of its product
lines.

Toll Road Investments

In 2008, through its 30% owned associated company, the Group’s
toll road investment in Maanshan, Anhui Province, recorded a
revenue of RMB52.65 million, a decrease of 2.5% from RMB53.98
million in last year.

On 12th March 2009, the aforesaid associated company entered
into an agreement with its joint venture partner of the toll road
subsidiary in Maanshan to dispose of its entire 70% equity
interest in that subsidiary company for a consideration of RMB
122 million.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group consistently holds the principle of financial prudence,
and still maintains a healthy financial position despite of the
liquidity crunch in the financial market. Based on 459,428,656
shares in issue (2007:459,428,656 shares), the net asset value
per share was HK$4.89 (2007: HK$5.73) at 31st December 2008.
The decrease was mainly attributable to the reduction in the
fair value of the Group’s investment in 72 million Huaneng’s A-
Share as compared to that at the end of 2007, which represented
a drop in the net asset value per share by HK$1.25.

As at 31st December 2008, the total liabilities of the Group were
HK$261.34 million (2007: HK$372.33 million) and the ratio of
total liabilities to total equity attributable to equity holders of
the Company was 0.12 (2007:0.14). As at 31st December 2008,
the current assets and current liabilities of the Group were
HK$641.25 million (2007: HK$742.21 million) and HK$200.19
million (2007: HK$221.99 million) respectively with a current
ratio of 3.2 (2007:3.3).

The Group has drawn down a three-year floating rate term loan
for financing the Suzhou Project in 2007, of which HK$36 million
was repaid during the year. The Group has also fully repaid
during the year a floating rate revolving loan of HK$5 million
which was drawn down in 2007.

As at 31st December 2008, the outstanding balance of these
bank loans drawn down by the Group was HK$144 million, of
which HK$90 million has to be repaid within one year, and the
balance of HK$54 million in two to five years. As at 31st
December 2008, the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
HK$20 million which could be drawn down at anytime.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, the above bank loans are secured by
the Group’s bank deposit of approximately HK$8.66 million,
certain properties (including the leasehold land component)
with a book value of approximately HK$57.67 million and share
mortgages of the Company’s subsidiaries, namely Min Xin
Properties Limited and Minxin Suzhou. Save for the above, the
other assets of the Group have not been pledged. In addition,
pursuant to certain requirements of the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong and the Macao
Insurance Ordinance, a subsidiary has allocated its funds of
HKS$16 million and MOP2.72 million respectively as bank
deposits.

As at 31st December 2008, the gearing ratio of the Group (total
borrowings and advances divided by total net assets) still
maintained at a relatively low level and was only 6.4% (2007:
7%).

The Group's bank deposits are interest bearing at prevailing
market rates. As at 31st December 2008, the total bank deposits
of the Group amounted to HK$261.3 million (2007: HK$365
million) of which 81.4% were denominated in Hong Kong
Dollars, 16.5% in Renminbi and 2.1% in other currencies (2007:
64.2% in Hong Kong Dollars, 33.7% in Renminbi and 2.1% in
other currencies).

The Group’s assets, liabilities and receipts and payments are
primarily denominated in Hong Kong Dollars and Renminbi. As
the exchange rate of Renminbi has increased as compared to
that at the end of 2007, the Group’s net monetary assets
denominated in Renminbi has resulted in foreign currency
translation gain of approximately HK$2.39 million recorded by
the Group in 2008 (2007: HK$9.35 million). Save for the above,
the Group anticipates that it will not face material risks arising
from foreign exchange rates fluctuation.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW (Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, the commitments of the Group for
its real estate development business amounted to HK$179.67
million (2007: HK$2.55 million), and the capital commitments
relating to property, plant and equipment amounted to HK$0.2
million (2007: HK$0.68 million).

As at 31st December 2008 and 2007, the Group does not have
any material contingent liabilities.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31st December 2008, the Group had 73 employees. The
remuneration of the employees is based on individual merits
and experience.The Group also provides other benefits to the
employees including retirement benefits and medical scheme.

PROSPECTS

As the influence of the global financial crisis will gradually
worsen and spill over, and the economies in certain major
developed countries have stepped into recession concurrently,
the global economic environment for this year is still
challenging, and the capital and credit market will remain tense.
With the introduction of aggressive monetary policies and fiscal
measures by the governments of various countries, and a series
of economic stimulus packages and monetary ease policy
adopted by the central government of Mainland China to
increase the domestic demand, adjust the economic structure
and improve the livelihood of people, the Board believes that
these measures will bring positive support to the banking
business invested by the Group.

For the real estate business in Mainland China, the Group will,
while steadily proceeding with the construction of the Suzhou
Project, selectively seek appropriate and attractive investment
opportunities in the real estates market in Mainland China.
Despite of the market uncertainties in the future, the Board is
still optimistic about the prospects of the real estates market in
Mainland China in the long term.
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PROSPECTS (Continued)

The year of 2009 will still be a year with great challenges.
However, the Board believes that whenever there is a crisis, there
is an opportunity. In the future, the Group will strive to combat
the adverse impact arising from the financial crisis, and will
adjust its business strategies to meet the changes of economic
environment. It will also seek to capture any favorable
opportunities for prudent investment in order to ensure a
continuous, stable and healthy growth, and generate greater
value for the shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to express my
appreciation and gratitude to our friends for their support, and
to the management and all our staff for their dedicated services
and contribution.

DING SHI DA
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2009
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ding Shi Da, aged 60, has been appointed as Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company since April 2002. Mr Ding is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China and holds a Doctorate
Degree in Management from the Postgraduate School of the
Chinese Academy of Social Science.He has spent about 35 years
in various large companies such as Fujian Building Materials
Industry Company and Fujian Building Materials Holding Co.,
Ltd., as well as the economic administration department of the
government in Shang Hang County and Long Yan Region. He
has extensive experience in capital and financial management
and has previously assumed the positions of Chief Leader and
Section Head of the Economic Committee in Long Yan Region,
General Manager of Fujian Building Materials Industry Company
and Fujian Building Materials Holding Co., Ltd.,and Chairman of
Fujian Cement Inc., a listed company in Shanghai.He is currently
the President of Fujian Investment & Enterprise Holdings
Corporation, the Chairman of Vigour Fine Company Limited, and
the President of Samba Limited, all of which are substantial
shareholders of the Company.

Mr Chen Gui Zong, aged 67, was appointed as Vice Chairman
and Executive Director of the Company in January 1997. He
acted as Chairman of the Company for the period from July 1999
to July 2000 and was re-appointed as Vice Chairman and
Executive Director from July 2000 to 23rd April 2009. Mr Chen is
a Senior Economist in Mainland China. He has spent about 34
years in various finance and economic departments of the Fujian
Provincial Government, Putian Municipal Government, The
Fuzhou Branch of The People’s Bank of China, and The Planning
and Budget Division, External Economic Affairs Committee and
investments enterprises in Fuzhou. He has previously assumed
the positions of Section Head, General Manager, Mayor, Deputy
Chief Secretary and Director of Administrative Office of the
Provincial Government.

15



1z £ @4 R 2 3 Min Xin Holdings Limited

16

o o Jom A BN B AR R
BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

AATHE S ()

HER  s4m 0 RZEEAFENAZ+=H
BEZAAAXRACEEEREREE - §
SEEXREER RENEEERE  Ef
MR ME EAEEMLEETEI/E
BEEEENRE ®E  ERREERMAR
MEXEELR ZETEEEMEREE
R X1 EEENELQTEALEBENER
REFBENTRILKE - hIRFABER
ERIRANTEKIE o

k2w s7m B-EE=FNABEERME
RERTRZEBES - KREEBRBAREBEE
KRB ARETREZMBE  RENSEXLE
EETH BEENLXERE FHER
g REXBREFTEFLER  BLRAER
RERBEH_ERER  FERBINRE
BREERFEHELARKE - HIRIFAE
BREGEEELARAE  UAREFAR
RAIZES  ZMERARAHARRAZEE
MRER ©

TEEH  46m 0 R-_ETRFTHAZE-EZT
NWENAZ+=-AHPBEEART 2T
EE O UR-SZAENA=-T+=HEHAMRT
AXNTERES - TEHCBEEREERF
KEZEEL > PR PEKESRE TR
BeoRENELEEEIE  BEENDE
BT UBEBEMERBELR - ZBIETRE
EEAENBAGLBRERNE  RER B2
BEMNBHILARE  ENEEHEERD
TREER  AKE,; BNEEHEQTE
ER, BEREMRANTESGHE 1T
REPEREEAARLDARPBRERAR
BREERLATAMNESZEEE - WA BERQT
FTERRBERECEEELNTAZEARR
MmETHif o

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Weng Ruo Tong, aged 54, was appointed as Vice Chairman and
Executive Director of the Company on 23rd April 2009. Mr Weng is
an university graduate and has engaged in industrial investment,
infrastructure construction and development, capital and corporate
management for a substantial period of time. He has extensive
experience in investments, financing, infrastructure construction
and development, and corporate management. He has previously
assumed the positions of Vice Director of the Forestry Department
of Fujian Province, General Manager of Fujian Forestry Company,
Deputy General Manager of Fujian Investment and Development
Corporation. He is currently the General Manager of Fujian
Investment & Development Corporation.

Mr Zhu Xue Lun, aged 57, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since April 2003. Mr Zhu is an university
graduate and an Engineer in Mainland China. He has spent a
long time in corporate management and has extensive
experience in corporate management, property management,
investment and capital management. He has previously
assumed the positions of Director of Taining Light Industry
Bureau in Fujian Province, Head of Taining County, General
Manager of Huafu Real Estate Company in Fujian Province.He is
currently a Vice President of Fujian Investment & Enterprise
Holdings Corporation and a Director of Vigour Fine Company
Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders of the
Company.

Mr Wang Hui Jin, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company from October 2005 to 22nd April 2009,
and was re-designated as an Executive Director of the Company
on 23rd April 2009. Mr Wang is an university graduate and holds
a Bachelor's Degree in Economics. He is a Senior Accountant in
Mainland China. He has spent a long time in corporate
management and has extensive experience in corporate
management, financial management and capital management.
He has previously assumed the positions of Deputy and Section
Head of the Finance Department of Fuzhou Medical Centre in
Fujian Province, General Manager of Fuzhou Medical Centre in
Fujian Province,Vice Chairman and General Manager of Fuzhou
Tong Chun Pharmaceutical Group Corporation, Chairman of
Fuzhou Chang Chun Pharmaceutical Company and Chief
Accountant of Fujian Investment Development Company.He has
also served as Chairman of the Supervisory Committee of
CNOOC Fujian Gas Ltd.and CNOOC Fujian Gas Power Ltd.He is
currently a Vice President and the Chief Accountant of Fujian
Investment & Enterprise Holdings Corporation, a substantial
shareholder of the Company.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr Weng Jian Yu, aged 52, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since November 2004. Mr Weng joined
the Company as Deputy General Manager in June 2004 and has
served as the General Manager of the Company since October 2004.
He is an Economist in Mainland China. He has over 20 years’
management experience in financial companies which include
banks, trust companies and fund management companies etc. He
is currently a Director of Vigour Fine Company Limited and Samba
Limited, both of which are substantial shareholders of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Chen Le, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive Director
of the Company from June 2006 to 23rd April 2009. Mr Chen has
spent a long time in capital and corporate management and has
extensive experience in international capital market financing and
corporate management .He has previously assumed the positions
of Director of County Bureau of Goods and Materials, Section
Director of the Planning Commission of Ningde Prefecture in Fujian
Province, General Manager of Ningde Investment & Development
Company, and General Manager of the Corporate Planning
Department and the Finance Department of Fujian Investment &
Enterprise Holdings Corporation.

Mr Li Jin Hua, aged 46, was appointed as a Non-executive
Director of the Company on 23rd April 2009. Mr Li is an university
graduate and holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration. He is a Senior Economist and Senior Engineer
in Mainland China, and has engaged in industrial investment,
project development and corporate management for a
substantial period of time. He has extensive experience in
corporate management and investment, development and
construction.He has previously assumed the positions of Deputy
General Manager of Fujian Raw Materials United Development
Company, General Manager of Zhong Min Leasing Company,
General Manager of Fujian Hongfa Economic Development
Company and Deputy Gerenal Manager of the Planning and
Development Department of Fujian Investment & Development
Corporation. He is currently the General Manager of the Gas
Department of Fujian Investment & Development Corporation.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Ip Kai Ming, aged 57, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since July 1998. He is
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Audit Committee of the Company. He is currently an
Executive Director and General Manager of Luso International
Banking Limited in Macao. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Bankers and the Hong Kong Institute of
Directors,and has over 30 years’ extensive experience in banking
and finance.He is also a member of Beijing Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference, a
Director of the Macao Chamber of Commerce, the Vice Chairman
of the Executive Board of the Macao Institute of Financial
Services and a Vice Chairman of the Macao Chinese Enterprises
Association.

Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, aged 68, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since May
1999.He is the Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He is a fellow
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practised for over 20 years. He is currently a non-executive
director to a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr So Hop Shing, aged 61, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since
September 2004. He is a member of both the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee of the Company.He is a practising
solicitor and senior partner of Tang and So, Solicitors and
Notaries. Mr So is the holder of Bachelor of Laws Degree from
the University of London, Master of Laws Degree from the City
University of Hong Kong and The People’s University of China,
and Doctor of Laws Degree from Peking University.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms Cai Xiao Hong, aged 54, joined the Company as Deputy
General Manager in June 1995. She holds a Master’s Degree in
Business Administration from the University of California, Los
Angeles and has previously worked for various large companies.
She has over 20 years’ extensive experience in financial and
investment management.

Mr Lin Zhu Fu, aged 45, joined the Company as Deputy General
Manager in September 2006. Mr Lin graduated from the Fujian
College of Engineering in Architecture and Beijing Jiaotong
University in Law. He is an Engineer and Senior Corporate
Controller in Mainland China and has over 25 years’ experience
in real estate development, construction, investment
management and corporate management.

Mr Chan Kwong Yu, aged 38, joined the Company in April 2000.
He was appointed as the Deputy Financial Controller of the
Company in July 2004 and was promoted to Financial Controller
in January 2008. He holds a Bachelor of Commerce Degree in
Accounting, and is a Certified Public Accountant and a Fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Before
joining the Company, he has worked for various listed companies
in Hong Kong. He has 11 years of extensive experience in
accounting and financial management.

Ms Huang Yu Chai, aged 45, joined the Company as Group Chief
Auditor in January 2008. Ms Huang, an university graduate, is a
Certified Internal Auditor, and a Senior Accountant in Mainland
China. She has been committed to the fields of financial and
auditing for a long period of time, and has extensive experience
in financial management and audit for more than 24 years.

Mr Chan Kwok Kwong, aged 50, joined Min Xin Insurance
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
in 1999 and was appointed as Chief Executive in October of the
same year.He holds a Master’s Degree in Business Administration
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong and a Master’s Degree
in Engineering (Civil & Structural Engineering) from the Sheffield
University of England. He has acquired extensive experience
from various multi-national insurance and reinsurance
companies for 22 years.
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

For the financial year ended 31st December 2008, the Company
has applied the principles and complied with all the
requirements set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) except for the deviation
from code provision A.4.1 in respect of the service terms of Non-
executive Directors, details of which are set out in this report.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company currently
comprises a total of nine Directors, with five Executive Directors,
one Non-executive Director and three Independent Non-
executive Directors. The three Independent Non-executive
Directors collectively possess a wide range of expertise on
accounting, financial management and legal areas.The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 15 to 19.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules to the Company. Accordingly, the Company is
of the view that all the Independent Non-executive Directors
meet the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules
and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

The Board determines the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and financial
performance. It also decides on matters such as annual budgets
and business plans, major transactions, director appointments
or re-appointments, and dividend and accounting policies.The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to senior management
under the supervision of the General Manager and the Executive
Committee of the Board.
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Board of Directors (Continued)

Board meetings are normally scheduled in advance to facilitate
fullest possible attendance. Each Director is invited to present
any businesses that he wishes to discuss or propose at such
meetings. All Directors have access to appropriate business
documents and information about the Company on a timely
basis. The Board and each Director have separate and
independent access to senior management of the Company.
Directors may choose to take independent professional advice
at the Company’s expenses, if necessary. Drafts and final versions
of minutes are circulated to all the Directors for comments.The
Company held four full Board meetings in 2008 and the average
attendance rate was 83%. Individual attendance of each Director
at the Board meetings, the Audit Committee meetings and the
Remuneration Committee meeting during 2008 is set out below:

R EERAH
Attendance/Number of Meetings
EEE BEREEE HFWESE
Audit Remuneration
Board Committee Committee
BITEE Executive Directors
TRELR® (£FE) Mr Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 4/4 — —
BRERLE (BFE) Mr Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman) 4/4 — —
REMEL Mr Zhu Xue Lun 3/4 — —
SERFRE (BEKE) Mr Weng Jian Yu (General Manager) 4/4 — 11
BIAFRITES Independent Non-executive Directors
EEREE Mr Sze Robert Tsai To 4/4 2/2 11
(BERZEEFE) (Chairman of the Audit Committee)
ERBALEE Mr Ip Kai Ming 3/4 2/2 11
FHZEEFE) (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)
BamtE Mr So Hop Shing 3/4 2/2 1/1
FHRTES Non-executive Directors
FTERiLE Mr Wang Hui Jin 2/4 — —
BR&E KA Mr Chen Le 3/4 — —
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of the Chairman of the Board (“Chairman”) and
the existing General Manager (acting in the capacity of Chief
Executive Officer) of the Company are held by separate
individuals with a view to maintain an effective segregation of
duties regarding management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of the Group’s business.One of the important roles
of the Chairman is to provide leadership to the Board to ensure
that the Board acts in the best interests of the Group. The
Chairman ensures that the Board works effectively and
discharges its responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. The
Chairman has delegated the responsibility for drawing up the
agenda for each Board meeting to the General Manager and
the Company Secretary. Senior management is responsible for
the day-to-day operations of the Group under the leadership of
the General Manager of the Company. The General Manager,
working with the Executive Committee and supported by other
management, is responsible for managing the businesses of the
Group, including implementation of strategies adopted by the
Board and assuming full accountability to the Board for the
operations of the Group.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meetings with the Independent Non-executive Directors
without the presence of Executive Directors in 2008.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Since the full Board is involved in the appointment of new
Directors, the Company has not established a Nomination
Committee. The Board will take into consideration criteria such
as expertise, experience, integrity and commitment when
considering new director appointments.

The Non-executive Directors of the Company have not been
appointed for a specific term as required by Code Provision A.4.1;
but they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election
at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with
the Company’s Articles of Association.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors (Continued)

The Articles of Association of the Company requires every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term or
holding office as Chairman or Managing Director) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the daily
operations of the Group’s businesses to the Executive
Committee which currently consists of four Executive Directors
of the Board, namely Mr Ding Shi Da, Mr Weng Ruo Tong,
Mr Zhu Xue Lun and Mr Wang Hui Jin. These members meet
frequently as and when necessary.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three Independent Non-
executive Directors and is chaired by Mr Sze Robert Tsai To who
was a partner of an international firm of accountants with which
he practised for over 20 years. It is responsible for the
appointment of external auditors, reviewing the Group's
financial information and providing oversight of the Group’s
financial reporting and internal control system. It is also
responsible for reviewing the interim and final results of the
Group prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.
It meets regularly to review financial reporting and internal
control matters and to perform such duties it has unrestricted
access to both the Company’s external and internal auditors.

In 2008, the Audit Committee held two meetings with the
attendance rate of 100%. At the meetings, it reviewed the final
results for the year ended 31st December 2007 and the interim
accounts for the six months ended 30th June 2008 respectively
with the external auditors; and also the activities of the Group’s
internal audit function and its findings and recommendations
as laid down in the internal audit reports.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board regarding the Company’s
remuneration policy, and the formulation and review of the
specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors and
senior management of the Company.

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-executive Directors.This Committee is chaired
by Mr Ip Kai Ming who is an Independent Non-executive Director.
The other members are Mr Sze Robert Tsai To, Mr So Hop Shing,
Mr Weng Jian Yu and Mr Chan Kwong Yu.

During 2008, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the fees
of the Directors,and payment of bonus to the management staff.
It also reviewed the Company’s proposed salary adjustments to
its employees. One meeting was held in 2008 with the
attendance rate of 100%.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board has the responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains sound and effective controls to safeguard the Group’s
assets.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable,
but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or
loss; to manage rather than completely eliminate the risk of
system failure; and to assist in the achievement of the Group’s
objectives.

The Internal Audit Department plays a major role in monitoring
the internal control of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee and the Board. It has unrestricted access to review
all aspects of the Group's activities and internal controls. It also
conducts special audits of areas of concern identified by the
Audit Committee or management.The Audit committee has free
and direct access to the Head of the Internal Audit Department
without reference to the Chairman or Management.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS (Continued)

In 2008, the Board, through the Audit Committee and Internal
Audit Department, conducted an annual review of the Group’s
internal control system.The annual review was coordinated by
the Group’s Internal Audit Department, which, after senior
management and each business and operational unit had
performed their self-assessment, have carried out independent
examination and other post-assessment work on the review
process and results. The results of the 2008 review had been
reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of
accounts for each financial period with a view to ensuring such
accounts give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Group and of the results and cash flow for that period. The
Company'’s accounts are prepared in accordance with all relevant
statutory requirements and applicable accounting standards.
The Directors are responsible for ensuring that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently; and
that judgements and estimates made are prudent and
reasonable.

AUDITORS” REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31st December 2008, the fees paid or payable
to the external Auditors for statutory audit services, attestation
work (in relation to interim financial statements issued by the
Company),and tax and consultancy services were HK$2,580,000,
HK$336,000 and HK$118,000 respectively.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by directors on terms no less exacting
than that required by the Listing Rules. Following a specific
enquiry, all the Directors confirmed that they complied with the
code of conduct for transactions in the Company's securities
throughout the year.

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct governing
securities transactions by employees who may possess or have
access to price sensitive information.
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The directors hereby present their report together with the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31st December
2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS AND
GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.The
activities of the subsidiaries are shown in Note 18 to the financial
statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
and geographical segments is set out in Note 5 to the financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31st December 2008
are set out on page 35.

The directors have resolved to recommend at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on 18th
June 2009 the payment of a final dividend of 3 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$13,782,860 for the year ended
31st December 2008. (2007: special dividend of 2 HK cents per
ordinary share totaling HK$9,188,573 and final dividend of 4 HK
cents per ordinary share totaling HK$18,377,146).

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, net assets and total equity of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 3 to 4.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment are
shown in Note 15 to the financial statements.
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PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD

Details of the Group’s principal property interests held for
investment purpose are set out on page 172.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company are shown in Note
33 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st December 2008,
calculated under section 79B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, amounted to HK$88,319,000 (2007: HK$91,772,000).

DIRECTORS

The names of the Directors serving during the year and at the
date of this report are set out on page 2.

In accordance with articles 94 and 95 of the Company’s Articles
of Association, Messrs Zhu Xue Lun, Sze Robert Tsai To and Ip
Kai Ming will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

In accordance with article 85 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs Weng Ruo Tong and Li Jin Hua who were
appointed as Directors of the Company on 23rd April 2009, shall
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company following their appointments and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation.

The Company has received from each Independent Non-
executive Director an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and the Company considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors are independent as defined in the
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company'’s
business to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.

At no time during the year was the Company or its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

At 31st December 2008, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies (“Model Code”) were as follows:

REATEERHBZBTE
Long Position in Ordinary Shares of the Company

BMAOFBRE S

M E BRERBEE Approximate

EENE Nature of Number of percentage of

Name of Director interests shares held shareholding
EREA (EPN S

Ip Kai Ming Personal interest 666,000 0.14%
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2008, none of the
Directors and Chief Executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code; and none of the Directors or their spouses or
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right during
the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

The register maintained by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO recorded that, as at 31st December 2008, the
following corporations had interests (as defined in the SFO) in
the Company:

MR E R
HERMEE Approximate
IR Bt st Number of percentage of
Name of Corporation Notes shares held shareholding
Samba Limited (“Samba”) 144,885,000 31.54%
Papilio Inc. 1 169,125,000 36.81%
BEEERAR(EED
Vigour Fine Company Limited (“Vigour Fine”) 2 191,340,600 41.64%
BERECEEE QAR ([REREDLE]
Fujian Investment & Enterprise
Holdings Corporation (“FIEC") 3 191,340,600 41.64%
Schroder Investment Management Limited 23,040,000 5.01%
Bt - Notes:
1. PapiliolnciFBSambalRRAEN =22 —5 1. Papilio Inc. held one third or more of the voting power at general
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meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

2. Vigour Fine held one third or more of the voting power at general
meetings of Samba and was deemed to be interested in
144,885,000 shares of the Company owned by Samba.

3. FIEC was the controlling shareholder of Vigour Fine and was
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company owned
by Vigour Fine directly or indirectly.

All the interests stated above represent long positions in the
ordinary shares of the Company. As at 31st December 2008, no
short positions were recorded in the register maintained by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the
year. Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year, the Company renewed the annual management
agreement with Vigour Fine, a substantial shareholder of the
Company, whereby Vigour Fine provides management services
to the Company which include the provision of directors to the
board of directors of the Company. A management fee of
HK$1,880,000 has been paid to Vigour Fine during the year.

Messrs Ding Shi Da, Zhu Xue Lun and Weng Jian Yu have interest
in the above transaction as directors of Vigour Fine.

Except for the above, no other contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the year.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details in respect of the Company’s Directors
and senior management are set out on pages 15 to 19.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group purchased less than 30% of its
products and services from its 5 largest suppliers and sold less
than 30% of its products and services to its 5 largest customers.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31st December 2008, which are not
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules as connected
transactions, are disclosed in Notes 19, 20, 37(a), 37(b) and 37(d)
to the financial statements.

Other related party transactions, which also constitute
connected transactions under the Listing Rules, are disclosed in
Notes 21, 25 and 37(c) to the financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as of the
date of this report, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

Details of the post balance sheet date events are disclosed in
Note 38 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS
The financial statements have been audited by

PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Board

DING SHI DA
Chairman

HONG KONG, 23rd April 2009
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF MIN XIN HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Min
Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together, the “Group”) set out on pages 35 to 171, which
comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at
31st December 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

Directors’ responsibility for the financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the
true and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error;
selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 141
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Auditor’s responsibility (Continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and
fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31st December 2008 and of the Group's profit and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23rd April 2009
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

2 220084F 12 A31 H IF F )& For the year ended 31st December 2008
2008 2007
T BEFIT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
X Turnover 5 98,622 92,890
W\ 4858 Total revenues 5 |  85168| 92,325
Hibdiz — %8 Other gains — net 6 | 5,242 73,117
RIEEEEEREEFRE  Netinsurance claims incurred and
rEASEA commission expenses incurred on
insurance business 7 (39,519) (39,538)
ETI A Staff costs (29,660) (28,051)
TER#HE Depreciation and amortisation (6,356) (4,855)
AHHESMEERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
s financial assets 8 (325) —
Hih &M Other operating expenses (19,361) (18,680)
SR B Total operating expenses ~(95,221) (91,124)
2% (§518) T Operating (loss)/profit 8 (4,811) 74,318
B & R A Finance costs 9 (7,460) (9,622)
BEHEZFIERES Share of results of jointly controlled
entities 19(a) 170,605 147,440
FE{L B N B 4R Share of results of associates 20 6,153 14,449
B Bt A i F Profit before taxation 164,487 226,585
B H Income tax expense 11 (560) (4,346)
REEiiF Profit for the year 12 163,927 222,239
I3 Dividend
— RKEER — Final dividend 13 13,783 18,377
— HAlR R — Special dividend 13 — 9,189
13,783 27,566
23] Bl
HK CENTS HK CENTS
BREF Earnings per share
—EXRiEE — Basic and diluted 14 35.68 48.37
SRS Dividend per share
— REER — Final dividend 3 4
— SRR E — Special dividend = 2
3 6
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

20084F 12 A31 H#E As at 31st December 2008
2008 2007
T BEFIT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
FRENEE Non-current assets
M - HEERFRE Property, plant and equipment 15 6,659 7,570
BREYE Investment properties 16 86,713 90,512
FHE Lt R 1 b {F A Leasehold land and land use rights 17 17,748 18,041
HEZFER Jointly controlled entities 19 1,143,062 939,836
& I A Associates 20 36,841 65,106
ARHESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 576,576 1,140,870
ELEMEHREE Deferred income tax assets 32 673 525
. 1.868,2721 . 2,262,460
REBEE Current assets
- it {5 F Land use rights 17 328,440 313,342
IE #E BY 15 R AN Deferred acquisition costs 22 15,781 12,944
1R Bx & UL FX Insurance receivable 23 15,858 10,293
BRBREE Reinsurance assets 24 4,892 7,373
H At P& UK BR X Other debtors 25 1,347 15,000
AARREZEE Prepayment and deposits 11,896 1,902
BATEEBRERYER Financial assets at fair value
NERMEE through profit or loss
—BEEEmM L™ — listed equity securities held
IR #E & 5 for trading 26 1,725 5,247
ReRBITEF Cash and bank balances 27 261,309 365,007
641,248 731,108
BIELENFERBEE Non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale 28 — 11,099
______ 641,248 742,207
mENE fE Current liabilities
REEEH Insurance contracts 29 70,684 74,053
R B3 FE A 3R Insurance payable 30 9,772 5,313
HMEMNBERKRESTER  Other creditors and accruals 28 30,036 18,656
glizs Deposits received 20 — 74,743
EWRHERSELEN Deposits received for disposal of
IRBEENRS non-current asset held-for-sale 28 = 8,542
IRITER Bank borrowings 31 89,590 40,422
PE S AR HA R 18 Current income tax payable 109 264
______ 200,191 | 221,993
RENEEFE Net currentassets | 441,057 | 520,214
BEERGSER Total assets less current liabilities 2,309,329 2,782,674
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

20084F12 31 H#E As at 31st December 2008
2008 2007
HE BETFT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
ERHERE Non-current liabilities
IRITER Bank borrowings 31 53,946 143,588
EIEFEHEAR Deferred income tax liabilities 32 7,201 6,748
61,147 150,336
EEFE Net assets 2,248,182 2,632,338
[i'&:S Share capital 33 459,429 459,429
Hihf#iE: Other reserves 33 1,562,840 1,919,783
REBimF Retained profits
BIRERE Proposed dividend 33 13,783 27,566
Hit Others 33 212,130 224,531
Rz iR P B gD Amount recognised directly
B EH ERIERED in equity relating to non-current
BEEFHRIE asset classified as held-for-sale 33 — 1,029
EATHESZFEA Total equity attributable to
FEIGHEZR 48R equity holders of the Company 2,248,182 2,632,338
T Ding Shi Da
EZZE Director
HEF Weng Jian Yu

) Director
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BALANCE SHEET

20084F 12 A31 H#E As at 31st December 2008
2008 2007
T BETFTT B F T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
#;ﬁ.iﬂﬁé N Non-current assets
WIZE ~ HEER R ERAB Property, plant and equipment 15 2,424 2,763
BE - Investment properties 16 38,713 38,012
FHE £ b K £+ it F F#E Leasehold land and land use rights 17 2,813 2,820
MEAR Subsidiaries 18 487,011 457,683
HEZGIEE Jointly controlled entities 19 205,800 205,800
AHEESMEE Available-for-sale financial assets 21 576,576 1,140,870
_____ 1,313,337 | 1,847,948
REEE Current assets
H i FE UK BR FX Other debtors 25 95 13,436
FERARRES Prepayment and deposits 1,040 677
FEUS — ST A B IR B Dividend receivable from a subsidiary — 5,500
BAFEZEBER R Financial assets at fair value
MEmEE N through profit or loss
—BEEEN LS — listed equity securities held
IR HE 54 25 for trading 26 222 278
ReRIRITER Cash and bank balances 27 170,529 295,507
. 171,886 315,398
BELENERBEE Non-current asset classified as
held-for-sale 28 — 10,070
_______ 171,886 | 325468
REEE R Current liabilities
HihEFBRANESTER Other creditors and accruals 28 25,220 12,620
B¢ & Deposits received 20 — 74,743
BWHERFEHER Deposits received for disposal of
FRBEENES non-current asset held-for-sale 28 = 8,542
IRITER Bank borrowings 37 89,590 40,422
_______ 114810 | 136327
REEETFE Netcurrentassets | 57,076 | 189,141
BEERRHER Total assets less current liabilites | 1,370,413 | . 2,037,089
kRBERE Non-current liabilities
RITER Bank borrowings 31 53,946 143,588
ELEFEHERE Deferred income tax liabilities 32 7,201 6,418
________ 61,147 | 150006
BEEE Net assets 1,309,266 1,887,083
[}:&: Share capital 33 459,429 459,429
HipflimE Other reserves 33 761,518 1,335,882
R e A Retained profits
BRI E Proposed dividend 33 13,783 27,566
Hth Others 33 74,536 64,206
HEREE Total equity 1,309,266 1,887,083
THiE Ding ShiDa
== Director
HEF Weng Jian Yu
== Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2 220084F 12 A31 H IF F )& For the year ended 31st December 2008
2008 2007
EETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
R1A1BZHERBE Total equity as at 1st January 2,632,338 1,694,672
AEEEREE Change in fair value of available-for-sale
DNEEEE financial assets (575,068) 688,044
HEZEFERER Change in fair value of available-for-sale
AHEESREE financial assets held by jointly
N EES controlled entities 11,197 5,282
BRELEMESHEE Deferred income tax liabilities recognised (2,604) (18,378)
HWIETERIELFTEHEME  Deferred income tax liabilities de-recognised — 47,336
ﬁ’i—” HESRERE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets = (49,595)
HEZEHERBHE Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets
f/\ HEEMERE held by a jointly controlled entity (623) (338)
—REBE QR HESE Disposal of non-current assets held-for-sale
HENFERBEE held by an associate — (5,905)
—RBENTBAZAE  Statutory reserve utilised by an
HES associate (352) —
BRE I FT'JLE’L\‘ 7o Exchange differences arising on translation
g N R R E = of the financial statements of foreign
E_%E'J,ﬁﬁi%#ﬁ%:zﬁﬁ subsidiaries, associates and
EEMNEREZE jointly controlled entities 46,933 67,358
EENERRERZ Net (expenses)/income recognised directly
(ZH) W NiFEE in equity (520,517) 733,804
KEEGF Profit for the year 163,927 222,239
RIBRREDZFBWNAN Net income recognised in the income
statement 163,927 222,239
AEECDHEIRZBAF Total recognised income and expenses
Z 4R for the year (356,590) 956,043
Iz 2 Dividend (27,566) (18,377)
R12A31B Z#ERHBE Total equity as at 31st December 2,248,182 2,632,338
RHEZR AR P B FERD B Amount recognised directly in equity
BIEHENERHEE relating to non-current asset
HEAIE classified as held-for-sale — 1,029
Hih Others 2,248,182 2,631,309
2,248,182 2,632,338
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2 22008412 A31 H IF F/Z

For the year ended 31st December 2008

2008 2007
T BEFIT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
SR TR EE Net cash outflow from operations 36 (104,300) (297,219)
2R T FRAE Interest income from bank deposits
received 6,439 6,763
2NFFE Interest paid (7,017) (9,146)
SRR Tax paid (410) (125)
HEXEBIHRSRH Net cash outflow from operating
R activities (105,288) (299,727)
BETH Investing activities
EW—FREEATRE Dividends received from an associate 5,400 2,760
EREEFFEEHEN Deposit received for disposal of non-current
IRBEENRS asset classified as held-for-sale 3,068 8,266
—REEQNTEEER Loan repaid by an associate 30,467 —
NN Purchase of associates — (7)
BAREEEN LD Purchase of listed equity securities held
iR #E °E 25 for trading (73) (5,513)
HEREEEN LD Sale of listed equity securities held
% R % 2 for trading 1,525 3,346
AV - HEENERE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (341) (1,543)
HEREWE Sale of investment property 8,725 —
HERAHHESHEE Sale of available-for-sale financial assets 25 13,561 154,999
BREFHEREARNFHE Net cash inflow from investing activities 62,332 162,308
SRR EE Net cash outflow before financing (42,956) (137,419)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

2 220084F 12 A31 H IF F )& For the year ended 31st December 2008
2008 2007
g BEFIT BT T
Note HK$’000 HKS'000
& Financing
WERITER Bank loans obtained = 183,543
BEERITER Bank loans repaid (41,000) (64,000)
EIREREEEESHE  Withdrawal of bank deposits pursuant to
REZIRITER insurance regulatory requirements 232 2,347
RBE (R EEER Withdrawal/(placement) of pledged deposits 26,959 (35,622)
RE R B Dividend paid (27,566) (18,377)
BIEIRS GRE) FWANEE Net cash (outflow)/inflow from financing (41,375) 67,891
HeRkBReEEMRL Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (84,331) (69,528)
1A1BEBEZRER Cash and cash equivalents
HEZEEY at 1st January 310,512 363,077
RERB2EEMER Exchange gains on cash and
W = cash equivalents 7,824 16,963
12A3MBEHEZHRER Cash and cash equivalents
HE2%EEY at 31st December 234,005 310,512
MeERBEEEDER Analysis of the balances of cash and
7 cash equivalents
HERBITER Cash and bank balances 27 261,309 365,007
W RIBREMEESHIE  Less: Bank deposits placed pursuant to
REMFRZIRIT insurance regulatory
TR requirements 27 (18,641) (18,873)
KR ERK Pledged deposits 27 (8,663) (35,622)
234,005 310,512
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Min Xin Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively refer to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in financial services,
property development and investment, investment
holding businesses, industrial instrument manufacturing
and toll road investment.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated
in Hong Kong.The address of its registered office is 17th
Floor, Fairmont House, 8 Cotton Tree Drive, Central, Hong
Kong.The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements have been
approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23rd April
2009.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are
set out below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collectively refer
to all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs")
and Interpretations (“Ints”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), and
have been aligned with accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention except that the
following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value
as explained in the accounting policies set out below:

— available-for-sale financial assets

— financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) at fair value through profit
or loss

— investment properties

Non-current assets and disposal groups held for sale are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs to sell.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
the HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. Although these estimates are based
on management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, actual results may differ from those estimates.

Estimates and judgement made by management are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity or where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

The Group has adopted, for the first time, the Amendments
to HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” and HKFRS 7 “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures”— Reclassification of Financial Assets, the new
HKFRS issued by the HKICPA that are effective from 1st July
2008.

The Amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 —
Reclassification of Financial Assets permit reclassification
of non-derivative securities (other than those designated
as fair value through profit or loss upon initial recognition)
out of the trading category in rare circumstances. The
Amendments also permit reclassification of non-derivative
securities (other than those designated as fair value
through profit or loss upon initial recognition) which
would have met the definition of loans and receivables out
of the trading category (i.e., out of the fair value through
profit or loss category) if the entity has the intention and
ability to hold the financial assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity. The reclassified assets would be carried
at their fair value on the date of reclassification, which will
become their new costs or amortised costs, as applicable.
The Amendments also permit reclassification of financial
assets from the available-for-sale category to the loans and
receivables category if the entity has the intention and
ability to hold the financial assets for the foreseeable future
or until maturity. The Amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 can only be applied prospectively from 1st July 2008.

The adoption of the Amendments to HKAS 39 and HKFRS
7 did not have any financial impact on the Group as no
reclassification of financial assets was made by the Group
in 2008.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Continued)

Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial
statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of new
HKFRSs which are not yet effective for the accounting year
ended 31st December 2008 and which have not been early
adopted in these consolidated financial statements.

Of these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

— HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

— HKFRS 8 Operating Segments

— HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial

Statements

— HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

— HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements

— HK(IFRIC) - Int 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes

— HKICPA’s improvements to HKFRSs published in
October 2008

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these new HKFRSs is expected to be in
the period of initial application.So far it has concluded that
the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group's results of operations and financial
position.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made
up to 31st December.

(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Group. Control existed when the
Group has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its
activities. In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

Subsidiaries are consolidated into the consolidated
financial statements from the date that control
commenced until the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to account
for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the Group. The cost
of an acquisition is measured at the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred or
assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.ldentifiable assets acquired
and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair
values at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of
any minority interest.The excess of the cost of acquisition
over the fair value of the Group’s share of the identifiable
net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill (Note 2.4). If
the cost of acquisition is less than the fair value of the
identifiable net assets of the subsidiary acquired, the
difference is recognised directly in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Intra-group transactions, balances and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in the same way as unrealised profits but
only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed,
where necessary, in the consolidated financial statements
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets
of subsidiaries attributable to interests that are not owned
by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through
subsidiaries. Minority interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity holders of the Company.
Minority shareholders’ share in the results of the Group
are presented on the face of the consolidated income
statement as an allocation of the total profit or loss for the
year between minority interests and the equity holders of
the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minority shareholders
exceed their interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the
excess, and any further losses applicable to the minority
shareholders, are charged against the Group’s interest
except to the extent that the minority shareholders have
a binding obligation to, and are able to, make additional
investment to cover the losses. If the subsidiary
subsequently reports profits, the Group’s interest is
allocated all such profits until the minority shareholders’
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been
recovered.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(a) Subsidiaries and minority interests (Continued)

Loans from minority shareholders and other contractual
obligations towards minority shareholders are presented
as financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with Notes 2.17 and 2.18 depending on the
nature of the liability.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note
2.10(b)). The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by
the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

(b) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or the
Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control over its management, including participation in the
financial and operating policy decisions.

Investments in associates are accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associates’net assets, unless they are classified
as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that is
classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14).The consolidated
income statement includes the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition, post-tax results of the associates for the year,
including any impairment loss on goodwill relating to the
investments in associates recognised for the year (Notes
2.4 and 2.10(b)). The carrying amount of the Group'’s
investments in associates includes the carrying amount of
goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(b) Associates (Continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its carrying
amount of the interest in an associate, the Group’s interest
is reduced to nil and recognition of further losses is
discontinued except to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the
Group's interest in the associate is the carrying amount of
the investment under equity method together with the
Group's long-term interests that in substance form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s interests in the associates, except
where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are
recognised immediately in the consolidated income
statement. Accounting policies of associates have been
changed, where necessary, in the consolidated financial
statements to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in
associates are stated at cost less impairment losses (Note
2.10(b)), unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale) (Note 2.14).The results of associates are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(c) Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates
under a contractual arrangement between the Group or
the Company and other parties, where the contractual
arrangement establishes that the Group or the Company
and one or more of the other parties share joint control
over the economic activity of the entity.

Investments in jointly controlled entities are accounted for
in the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the jointly controlled entity’s net assets, unless it
is classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group
that is classified as held for sale) (Note 2.14). The
consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the jointly
controlled entities for the year, including any impairment
loss on goodwill relating to the investments in jointly
controlled entities recognised for the year (Notes 2.4 and
2.10(b)). The carrying amount of the Group’s investments
in jointly controlled entities includes the carrying amount
of goodwill (net of any accumulated impairment losses)
identified on acquisition.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its carrying
amount of the interest in a jointly controlled entity, the
Group's interest is reduced to nil and recognition of further
losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the jointly controlled entity. For this
purpose, the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity
is the carrying amount of the investment under equity
method together with the Group’s long-term interests that
in substance form part of the Group’s net investment in
the jointly controlled entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.3 Basis of consolidation (Continued)
(c) Jointly controlled entities (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its jointly controlled entities are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in the
jointly controlled entities, except where unrealised losses
provide evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred,
in which case they are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement. Accounting policies of
jointly controlled entities have been changed, where
necessary, in the consolidated financial statements to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet the investments in jointly
controlled entities are stated at cost less impairment losses
(Note 2.10(b)), unless they are classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale) (Note 2.14).The results of jointly controlled entities
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

2.4 Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of a business
combination or an investment in an associate or a jointly
controlled entity over the Group's interest in the net fair
value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment
losses. Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units and
is tested annually for impairment (Note 2.10(b)). In respect
of associates or jointly controlled entities, the carrying
amount of goodwill is included in the carrying amount of
the interests in the associates or jointly controlled entities.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.4 Goodwill (Continued)

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of a business combination or an
investment in an associate or a jointly controlled entity is
recognised immediately in the income statement.

On disposal of a cash-generating unit, an associate or a
jointly controlled entity during the year, any attributable
amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the gains or losses on disposal.

2.5 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment, including buildings
held for own use, are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.
Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the assets. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gain/loss on qualifying
cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of
property, plant and equipment. As at the balance sheet
date, the Group did not have any cash flow hedges of
foreign currency purchases of property, plant and
equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with that asset will flow to the Group and the
cost of that asset can be measured reliably. All other repair
and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Gain or loss arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined by
comparing the net proceeds with the carrying amount and
is recognised in “Other gains — net”in the consolidated
income statement on the date of retirement or disposal.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.5 Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment, less their estimated residual value,
if any, over their estimated useful lives at the following
annual rates:

(a) Straight line method

Buildings held for Over the shorter of the
own use unexpired term of the
lease and 30 years

Computer equipment 20% - 50%
(b) Reducing balance method

Furniture, fixtures and 10% - 20%
office equipment

Motor vehicles 20% - 25%

An asset’s residual value and useful life are reviewed, and
adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. An
asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note
2.10(b)).

2.6 Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation or both, and are not occupied by the
companies within the Group. They comprise land held
under operating leases and buildings held under finance
leases.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.6 Investment properties (Continued)

Land held under operating leases are classified and
accounted for as investment property on a property-by-
property basis when the rest of the definition of
investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it was a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment property is carried at fair value. Fair value is
based on active market prices and adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If this information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Investment property that is being
redeveloped for continuing use as investment property,
or for which the market has become less active, continues
to be measured at fair value.

Subsequent expenditure is included in the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the period in which they are incurred.

Changes in fair value and gain or loss on disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of “Other gains — net”.

2.7 Land use rights

Cost of prepaid lease for land use rights is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the duration of the land use rights
or where there is impairment, the impairment is expensed
in the income statement. The amortisation of land use
rights is capitalised under the relevant assets when the
properties on the land are under construction. The
remaining carrying amount of the land use rights is
recognised as cost of sales when the relevant properties
are sold.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines
the classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

The Group recognises financial assets on the date it
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.Regular purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value, which
normally will be equal to the transaction price plus, in case
of financial assets not held at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial assets. Transaction costs on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
expensed in the income statement immediately.

(b) Classification and measurement
(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss

This category comprises financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss
upon initial recognition, but exclude those investments in
equity instruments that do not have a quoted market price
and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.

Financial assets held for trading are financial assets
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial assets
that are managed together and for which there is evidence
of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless
they are designated as hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) Atfairvalue through profit or loss (Continued)

Financial assets are designated at fair value through profit
or loss upon initial recognition when:

— the assets are managed, evaluated and reported
internally on a fair value basis;

— the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch which would otherwise
arise;

— the asset contains an embedded derivative that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required under the contract; or

—  the separation of the embedded derivatives from the
financial assets is not prohibited.

Financial assets under this category are subsequently
carried at fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value are included in the consolidated income
statement within “Other gains — net” in the period in
which they arise. Upon disposal, the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying value is included
in the consolidated income statement within “Other gains
— net”in the period in which they arise. Dividend income
is recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of “Other revenues” when the Group’s right to receive
payment is established.

Assets in this category are classified as current assets if they
are either held for trading or are expected to be realised
within twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise when the Group provides
money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no
intention of trading the receivables.

Loans and receivables are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less impairment losses, if any
(Note 2.10(a)(i)).

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than or are expected to be realised after
twelve months from the balance sheet date which are
classified as non-current assets.

(iii) ~ Held-to-maturity

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s management has the
positive intention and ability to hold to maturity.

Held-to-maturity financial assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method, less impairment
losses, if any (Note 2.10(a)(ii)).

They are included in current assets except for those with
maturities greater than twelve months after the balance
sheet date which are classified as non-current assets.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(b) Classification and measurement (Continued)
(iv) Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated in this category
or not classified in any of the other three categories above.
They include financial assets intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time, but which may be sold in
response to need for liquidity or changes in the market
environment.

Available-for-sale financial assets are carried at fair value
except for investments in equity securities that do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less
impairment losses, if any (Note 2.10(a)(iii)). Unrealised gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value are
recognised directly in the investment revaluation reserve,
except for foreign exchange gains and losses on monetary
items such as debt securities which are recognised in the
income statement.

When the available-for-sale financial assets are sold, gains
or losses on disposal include the difference between the
net sale proceeds and the carrying value, and the
accumulated fair value adjustments which are released
from the investment revaluation reserve.

They are included in non-current assets unless
management intends to dispose of the assets within
twelve months from the balance sheet date.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)
(c) De-recognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

(d) Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their
quoted market prices (bid prices) at the balance sheet date
without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

If there is no publicly available latest traded price nor a
quoted market price on a recognised stock exchange or a
price from a broker/dealer for non-exchange traded
financial instruments, or if the market for it is not active,
the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
valuation techniques that provide a reliable estimate of
prices which could be obtained in actual market
transactions.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used,
estimated future cash flows are based on management’s
best estimates and the discount rate used is a market rate
at the balance sheet date applicable for an instrument with
similar terms and conditions. Where other pricing models
are used, inputs are based on market data at the balance
sheet date.

2.9 Hedging
The Group does not adopt hedge accounting for derivative

financial instruments which may qualify as eligible cash
flow hedges or fair value hedges.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets
(a) Financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group
of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the assets (a ‘loss event’) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired includes observable data that comes to the
attention of the Group about the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

— abreach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments;

— the Group granting to the issuer or obligor, for
economic or legal reasons relating to their financial
difficulty, a concession that a lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the issuer or obligor will
enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or



—E2Z N\FF R Annual Report 2008

B 7 e o ik
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2

EEEEEOR )

2.10 B E WAL ()
(a) &EmEE 3H)

— ABENERNBEREEEREER
IR ARRE - HAFH 2 RAER
ERBHREAKE - BERERE
E B B ERIE 2 2R B A2 R R TR 18 Bl
THMEE  MEBERNERE

—  EZHARARERANSFGRR
I g

— RANRNEEREXRBRER
B8 1Y B =) 3 & 3 AR IR O B

PAN
= ©

(i) BEHREKMK

EREERBEERRBERATIRNE
AR EYHRHBRERE - AILEHE
ENREEEZSMEERRNERT
RIFE 2 AT RRRERE TBERE
EHNRREESR) ENREZETE
HERRE °

hEEEEBERABNREESREEZ
FREERNHRENEZERAER - [HE
RIEFBAEGTE » ARFEEMARE
BEZFRZIBENTEENERSE
BRA=R - EEMEFL - ARE AR
RUBR s EERREETANAF
@ -

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)

—  observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial asset in the
group, including:

— adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

— national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
(i)  Loans and receivables

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the financial asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a loan
has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,
the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(i) Loans and receivables (Continued)

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.

(i) Held-to-maturity

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
held-to-maturity financial assets carried at amortised cost
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the financial asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account and the amount
of the loss is recognised in the income statement. If a held-
to-maturity financial asset has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract.As a practical expedient, the Group may measure
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using
an observable market price.

If,in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised
(such as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the
reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(a) Financial assets (Continued)
(iii)  Available-for-sale

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-
sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the securities below their cost is considered in determining
whether the assets are impaired.

If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial
assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on those financial assets
previously recognised in the income statement — is
removed from equity and recognised in the income
statement.

For unquoted available-for-sale equity securities that are
carried at cost, the impairment loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount of the financial
asset and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar
financial asset.

If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised in the income
statement, the impairment loss is reversed through the
income statement.

Impairment losses recognised in the income statement on
equity securities are not reversed through the income
statement. Any subsequent increase in the fair value of
such assets is recognised directly in equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is an indication that a non-financial asset is impaired.
Assets that have an indefinite useful life or have not yet
available for use are not subject to amortisation and are
at least tested annually for impairment. Assets are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable.

If any such indication exists, or when annual impairment
testing for a non-financial asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount
of an asset is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset.Where an asset does not generate cash
inflows largely independent of those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group
of assets that generates cash inflows independently (i.e., a
cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in income statement for
the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised in
respect of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to
the cash-generating unit and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the other assets in the unit on a pro rata basis,
except that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or
value in use, if determinable.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.10 Impairment of assets (Continued)
(b) Other non-financial assets (Continued)

Previously recognised impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed in subsequent periods. A previously
recognised impairment losses on other assets are reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of an asset, however
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any amortisation or
depreciation), had no impairment loss been recognised
against the asset in prior periods. Reversal of impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.

(c) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to prepare
an interim financial report in compliance with HKAS 34,
Interim Financial Reporting, in respect of the first six
months of the financial year. At the end of the interim
period, the Group applies the same impairment testing,
recognition and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (Notes 2.10(a) and (b)).

Impairment losses recognised in an interim period in
respect of goodwill, available-for-sale equity securities and
unquoted equity securities carried at cost are not reversed
in a subsequent period.This is the case even if no loss,or a
smaller loss, would have been recognised had the
impairment been assessed only at the end of the financial
year to which the interim period relates.

2.11 Insurance contracts classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.

Insurance contracts are those contracts that transfer
significant insurance risk. The Group defines significant
insurance risk as the possibility of having to pay benefits
on the occurrence of an insured event that are at least 10%
more than the benefits payable if the insured event did
not occur.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts
(a) Recognition and measurement

Insurance contracts are classified depending on the
duration of risk and whether or not the terms and
conditions are fixed.

Short-term insurance contracts are property and casualty
insurance contracts.

Casualty insurance contracts protect the Group’s
customers against the risk of causing harm to third parties
as a result of their legitimate activities. Damages covered
include both contractual and non-contractual events.The
typical protection offered is designed for employers who
become legally liable to pay compensation to injured
employees (employers’ liability) and for individual and
business customers who become liable to pay
compensation to a third party for bodily harm or property
damage (public liability).

Property insurance contracts mainly compensate the
Group's customers for damage suffered to their properties
or for the value of property lost. Customers who undertake
commercial activities on their premises could also receive
compensation for the loss of earnings caused by the
inability to use the insured properties in their business
activities (business interruption cover).

For all these contracts, premiums are recognised as
revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the period
of coverage.The portion of premium received on in-force
contracts that relates to unexpired risks at the balance
sheet date is reported as the unearned premium liability.
Premiums are shown before deduction of commission.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(a) Recognition and measurement (Continued)

Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to
income statement as incurred based on the estimated
liability for compensation owed to contract holders or
third parties damaged by the contract holders. They
include direct and indirect claims settlement costs and
arise from events that have occurred up to the balance
sheet date even if they have not yet been reported to the
Group. The Group does not discount its liabilities for
unpaid claims. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated
using the input of assessments for individual cases
reported to the Group and statistical analyses for the
claims incurred but not reported, and to estimate the
expected ultimate cost of more complex claims that may
be affected by external factors (such as court decisions).

(b) Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

Commissions and other acquisition costs that vary with
and are related to securing new contracts and renewing
existing contracts are capitalised as an intangible asset,
DAC. All other costs are recognised as expenses when
incurred.The DAC is subsequently amortised over the life
of the contracts as premium is earned.

(c) Liability adequacy test

At each balance sheet date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of the contract
liabilities net of related DAC assets. In performing these
tests, current best estimates of future contractual cash
flows and claims handling and administration expenses
are used. Any deficiency is immediately charged to income
statement initially by writing off DAC and by subsequently
establishing a provision for losses arising from liability
adequacy tests (the unexpired risk provision). Any DAC
written off as a result of this test cannot subsequently be
reinstated.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)
(d) Reinsurance contracts held

Contracts entered into by the Group with reinsurers under
which the Group is compensated for losses on one or more
contracts issued by the Group and that meet the
classification requirements for insurance contracts in Note
2.11 are classified as reinsurance contracts held. Contracts
that do not meet these classification requirements are
classified as financial assets. Insurance contracts entered
into by the Group under which the contract holder is
another insurer (inwards reinsurance) are included with
“Insurance contracts” on the balance sheet.

The benefits to which the Group is entitled under its
reinsurance contracts held are recognised as reinsurance
assets. These assets consist of short-term balances due
from reinsurers, as well as longer term receivables that are
dependent on the expected claims and benefits arising
under the related reinsured insurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured
consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured insurance contracts and in accordance with the
terms of each reinsurance contract. Reinsurance liabilities
are primarily premiums payable for reinsurance contracts
and are recognised as an expense over the terms of
reinsurance contracts and are included with “Insurance
payable”on the balance sheet.

The Group assesses its reinsurance assets for impairment
on a regular basis. If there is objective evidence that the
reinsurance asset is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable
amount and recognises that impairment loss in the income
statement.The Group gathers the objective evidence that
a reinsurance asset is impaired using the same process
adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is
also calculated following the same method used for those
financial assets. These processes are described in Note
2.10(a)(i).
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.12 Insurance contracts (Continued)

(e) Receivables and payables related to insurance

contracts

Receivables and payables are recognised when due.These
include amounts due to and from agents, brokers and
insurance contract holders.

If there is objective evidence that the insurance receivable
is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the
insurance receivable to its recoverable amount and
recognises that impairment loss in the income statement.
The Group gathers the objective evidence that an
insurance receivable is impaired using the same process
adopted for loans and receivables. The impairment loss is
also calculated under the same method used for those
financial assets. These processes are described in Note
2.10(a)(i).

(f)  Salvage and subrogation reimbursements

Some insurance contracts permit the Group to sell (usually
damaged) property acquired in settling a claim (salvage).
The Group may also have the right to pursue third parties
for payment of some or all costs (subrogation).

Estimates of salvage recoveries are included as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims, and salvage property is recognised in other
assets when the liability is settled. The allowance is the
amount that can reasonably be recovered from the
disposal of the property.

Subrogation reimbursements are also considered as an
allowance in the measurement of the insurance liability
for claims and are recognised in other assets when the
liability is settled. The allowance is the assessment of the
amount that can be recovered from the action against the
liable third party.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.13 Properties under development for sale

Properties under development for sale is included as
current assets and stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Net realisable value is determined by
reference to estimated sale proceeds of the properties sold
in the ordinary course of business less costs to complete
development and estimated selling expenses.

Development cost of properties comprises construction
costs, amortisation of land use rights, borrowing costs and
professional fees incurred during the development period.
On completion, the development cost of properties is
transferred to completed properties held for sale.

2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale

A non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held
for sale if the carrying amount is recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through a
continuing use and the asset (or disposal group) is
available for sale in its present condition.

Immediately before classification as held for sale, the
measurement of the non-current assets (and all individual
assets and liabilities in a disposal group) is brought up-to-
date in accordance with the accounting policies before the
classification. Then, on initial classification as held for sale
and until disposal, the non-current assets (except for
certain assets as explained below), or disposal groups, are
recognised at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell. The principal exceptions to this
measurement policy so far as the financial statements of
the Group are concerned are deferred tax assets, financial
assets (other than investments in subsidiaries, jointly
controlled entities and associates) and investment
properties. These assets, even if held for sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 2.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.14 Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for
sale (Continued)

As long as a non-current asset is classified as held for sale,
oris included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, the non-current asset is not depreciated or
amortised.

If a non-current asset previously classified as held for sale,
or included in a disposal group that is classified as held
for sale, are no longer met the recognition criteria stated
above, the Group measures that asset at the lower of its
carrying amount before that asset was classified as held
for sale, adjusted for any depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had that
asset not been classified as held for sale,and its recoverable
amount at the date of the subsequent decision not to sell.

The Group includes any required adjustment to the
carrying amount of a non-current asset that ceases to be
classified as held for sale in income from continuing
operations at the date of the subsequent decision not to
sell.

2.15 Other debtors

Other debtors are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

2.16 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand, deposits held at call with banks, cash investments
with original maturity of three months or less from the date
of investment less bank overdrafts.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.17 Financial liabilities — Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are
incremental costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial liability,
including fees and commissions paid to the borrowers.
Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost with
any difference between the amount initially recognised
and redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings, together
with any interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the balance
sheet date.

2.18 Financial liabilities — Creditors and payables

Creditors and payables are initially recognised at fair value.
Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured in
accordance with Note 2.19, trade and other payables are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.19 Financial guarantee liabilities

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the issuer
(i.e., the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”) for
a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the terms of
a debt instrument.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.19 Financial guarantee liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on the date that the guarantee
was given. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s
liabilities under such guarantees are measured at the
higher of the amount determined in accordance with
HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets”and the amount initially recognised less cumulative
amortisation recognised. Any changes in the liabilities
relating to financial guarantees are taken to the income
statement.

2.20 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control
of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising
from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements. When a change in
the probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is
probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

A contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable.When the inflow is virtually
certain, an asset is recognised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.21 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Where there are a number of similar
obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of
obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item
included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation.The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Where the Group expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

2.22 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statements
of each of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional and
presentation currency.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at closing exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement,
except when deferred in equity as qualifying cash flow
hedges or qualifying net investment hedges. As at the
balance sheet date, the Group did not have any cash flow
hedges or net investment hedges.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities, such as equity instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss in the income statement. Translation
differences on non-monetary items, such as equity
investments classified as available-for-sale financial assets,
are included in the investment revaluation reserve in
equity.

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated into
the presentation currency as follows:

— assets and liabilities items in their balance sheet are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.22 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(¢) Group companies (Continued)

— income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates, unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of the
cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates. In such case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions; and

— allresulting exchange differences are recognised as
a separate component of equity.

Exchange differences arising from the translation of the
net investment in foreign operations, and of borrowings
and other currency instruments designated as hedges of
such investments, are recognised directly in a separate
component of equity. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences which relate to that foreign
operation recorded in equity are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of that foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.

2.23 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in income statement except to the extent
that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in
which case they are recognised in equity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Income tax (Continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially
enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to
tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and
taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses
and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the assets can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences, provided those
differences relate to the same taxation authority and the
same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary differences or in periods into which a tax loss
arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or
forward.The same criteria are adopted when determining
whether existing taxable temporary differences support
the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from unused
tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken
into account if they relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can
be utilised.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.23 Income tax (Continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profit (provided they are not part
of a business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that,
in the case of taxable differences, the Group controls the
timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will
reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based
on the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the
carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates
enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent that
itis no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised.
Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:

— in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Group intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

— inthe case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on the same taxable entity.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.24 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

2.25 Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised on the following basis provided it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount can be measured reliably:

(a) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method. When a receivable is
impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount to its
recoverable amount, being the estimated future cash flow
discounted at original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income.

(b) Rental income from investment properties

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in the income statement in equal installments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern
of benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in the income
statement as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments receivable.

(c) Management fees

Management fees are recognised upon the provision of
services.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.25 Revenue recognition (Continued)
(d) Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholder’s
right to receive payment is established.

(e) Insurance contracts

The basis of recognition of insurance revenue is detailed
in Note 2.12.

2.26 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income statement in
the period in which they are incurred, except to the extent
that they are capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost of
a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for the
asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being incurred
and activities that are necessary to prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs is suspended or ceased when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are interrupted
or complete.

2.27 Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Payments made under operating
leases (including those for leasehold land) net of any
incentives received from the lessor are charged to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
periods.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits
(a) Short term employee benefits

Salaries and annual bonuses are paid or accrued in the year
in which the associated services are rendered by
employees.When payment or settlement is deferred and
the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at
their present values.

(b) Retirement benefit costs

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension plans on a mandatory, contractual
or voluntary basis. These pension plans are defined
contribution schemes which the Group pays fixed
contributions and has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid.The Group has no
legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to
pay all employees the benefits relating to employee
services rendered in the current and prior periods.

The Group's contributions are recognised as employee
benefit expense when they are due and are reduced by
contributions forfeited by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that
a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

(c) Employee leaves entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for
the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognised until the time of leave.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.28 Employee benefits (Continued)
(d) Share-based compensation

A jointly controlled entity of the Group operates an equity
participation plan under which its shares are granted to
eligible employees for services rendered. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange of the shares
granted net of any consideration received is recognised
as an expense.

(e) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated before the normal retirement date, or
whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in
exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed
to either terminating the employment of current
employees according to a detailed formal plan or
providing termination benefits as a result of an offer made
to encourage voluntary redundancy without realistic
possibility of withdrawal. Benefits falling due more than
twelve months after balance sheet date are discounted to
present value.

2.29 Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group
that is engaged either in providing products or services
(business segment), or in providing products or services
within a particular economic environment (geographical
segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are
different from those of other segments.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.29 Segment reporting (Continued)

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial reporting
system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and
geographical segment information as the secondary
reporting format for the purposes of these consolidated
financial statements.

Segment assets consist primarily of investment properties,
leasehold land and land use rights, loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, insurance related assets and
operating cash. Segment liabilities comprise operating
liabilities and exclude items such as taxation, accruals for
corporate overheads and corporate borrowings.
Unallocated items represent corporate overheads. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to property, plant and
equipment (Note 15), investment properties (Note 16) and
leasehold land and land use rights (Note 17).Intra-segment
loans and advances employed by the Group as part of the
Group'’s funding and capital allocation and the resulting
interest income and expenses are excluded from the
determination of segment assets, liabilities and results.

In respect of geographical segment reporting, revenue is
presented based on the country in which the customers
or the investee are located. Total assets and capital
expenditure are presented based on the country in which
the assets are located.

2.30 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the equity holders of the
Company is recognised as a liability in the period in which
the dividends are approved for distribution.
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PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

2.31 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial

statements, parties are considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a)

()

(e)

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through
one or more intermediaries, to control or joint control
the Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions;

the Group and the party are subject to common
control or common significant influence;

the party is an associate or a joint venture of the
Group;

the party is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Group's significant shareholders,
or a close family member of such an individual, or is
an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred
toin (a) or is an entity under the control, joint control
or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family

members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the

entity.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group’s business activities expose it to a variety of
financial risks including insurance risk, market risk
(including currency risk, price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. This note summarises the
Group's exposure to these risks, as well as its objectives,
policies and processes for managing and the methods
used to measure these risks.

The Group’s investment policy is to prudently invest its
funds in a manner which satisfies the Group’s liquidity
requirements and generates optimal returns to the Group
within a manageable risk level. The Group’s overall risk
management focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s performance.

The Board of Directors, representing the interest of
shareholders, is the highest decision making authority of
the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board has adopted procedures for
evaluating and approving significant investment decisions.
Given the nature of the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities, their risk exposures are monitored by the Group
primarily on a qualitative basis.

The General Manager (“GM”) is responsible for managing
the Group’s various types of risks, approving detailed risk
management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated
by the Board of Directors. The other members of the
management team assist the GM in fulfilling his
responsibilities for the day-to-day management of risks.

The Group has put in place an internal control system,
including establishment of Group’s organization structure
that sets adequately clear lines of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies,
procedures and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide
sufficient independence of the control functions from the
business areas, as well as adequate segregation of duties
throughout the organization which helps to promote
appropriate internal control environment.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk

The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk.This
section summarises these risks and the way the Group
manages such risks.

The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility
that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the
amount of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an
insurance contract, this risk is random and therefore
unpredictable.

For a portfolio of insurance contracts where the theory of
probability is applied to pricing and provisioning, the
principal risk that the Group faces under its insurance
contracts is that the actual claims exceed the carrying
amount of the insurance liabilities. This could occur
because the frequency or severity of claims and benefits
are greater than estimated. Insurance events are random
and the actual number and amount of claims will vary from
year to year from the level established using statistical
techniques.

Experience shows that the larger the portfolio of similar
insurance contracts, the smaller the relative variability
about the expected outcome will be. In addition, a more
diversified portfolio is less likely to be affected across the
board by a change in any subset of the portfolio.

Factors that aggravate insurance risk include lack of risk
diversification in terms of type and amount of risk,
geographical location and type of industry covered.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)
(i)  Frequency and severity of claims

The frequency and severity of claims can be affected by
several factors.The most significant are the increasing level
of awards for the damage suffered and the increase in
number of cases coming to court that were inactive or
latent for a long period of time. Estimated inflation is also
a significant factor due to the long period typically
required to settle these cases.

The Group manages these risks through its underwriting
strategy, adequate reinsurance arrangements and claims
handling.

The underwriting strategy attempts to ensure that the
underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and
amount of risk, industry and geographical location.

Underwriting limits are in place to enforce appropriate risk
selection criteria. For example, the Group has the right to re-
price, cancel or not to renew a contract, it can impose
deductibles and it has the right to reject the payment of
fraudulent claim. Insurance contracts also entitle the Group
to pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs
(subrogation). Unless the legislation requires, the Group's
strategy limits the total exposure of any individual policy to
a certain amounts.

The reinsurance arrangements include facultative,
proportional treaties and excess of loss coverage. The
effect of such reinsurance arrangements is that the Group
should not suffer total net insurance losses more than the
prescribed amount. In addition to the overall reinsurance
program, additional reinsurance protection for any
individual risk will be arranged when necessary.

The concentration of insurance risk before and after
reinsurance by territory in relation to type of insurance
accepted is summarised below, with reference to the
carrying amount of the insurance liabilities (gross and net
of reinsurance) arising from insurance contracts:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Frequency and severity of claims (Continued)

2008
-RiERERE BIRER

RE General Accident Hit k]
Motor liability  and health Others Total
BETT BETT BEFT BEFT  EETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

£8 Gross
5 Hong Kong 48,839 2,879 12,733 1,257 65,708
B Macao 216 419 832 3,509 4,976
RIGEFEE  £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 49,055 3,298 13,565 4,766 70,684

B8 Net
5 Hong Kong 45,703 2,687 12,731 671 61,792
B Macao 204 407 675 2,714 4,000
RIESEEE 58 Total insurance liabilities, net 45,907 3,094 13,406 3,385 65,792
2007
-REEET  ENKEE

AE General Accident =) o
Motor liability ~ and health Others Total
BEFT BEFT BETT BETT BEFTT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000

E2] Gross
5 Hong Kong 51,664 2,190 15,871 601 70,326
B Macao 217 530 434 2,546 3,727
RREEEE 8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 51,881 2,720 16,305 3,147 74,053

FE Net

54 Hong Kong 45,023 2,190 15,871 489 63,573
15! Macao 201 507 355 2,034 3,107
RBETAE 38 Total insurance liabilities, net 45,234 2,697 16,226 2523 66,680
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i)  Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claims
payments

Claims on insurance contracts are payable on a claim-
occurrence basis.The Group is liable for all insured events
that occurred during the term of the contract even if the
loss is discovered after the end of the contract term.As a
result, liability claims are settled over a long period of time
and a larger element of claims provision relates to incurred
but not reported claims (“IBNR").There are several variables
that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these
contracts. These mainly relate to the inherent risks by
individual contract holders and the risk management
procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these
contracts is the monetary awards granted for bodily injury
suffered. Such awards are lump-sum payments that are
calculated as the present value of the lost of earnings and
rehabilitation expenses that the injured party will incur as
a result of the accident.

The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to
be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected
subrogation value and other recoveries. The Group takes
all reasonable steps to ensure that it has appropriate
information regarding its claims exposures. However, given
the uncertainty in establishing claims provisions, it is likely
that the final outcome will prove to be different from the
original liability established.The liability for these contracts
comprises a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported
claims not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks at
the balance sheet date.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both
reported or not), the Group's estimation techniques are a
combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss
ratio is defined as the ratio between the ultimate cost of
insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a
particular financial year in relation to such claims) and an
estimate based upon actual claim experience using
predetermined formulae where greater weight is given to
actual claims experience as time passes.

The estimation of IBNR is generally subject to a greater
degree of uncertainty than the estimation of the cost of
settling claims already notified to the Group, where
information about the claim event is available. In
estimating the amount of IBNR which makes reasonable
provisions for the claims and the unexpired risks, it is
necessary to project future claims cost and associated
claims expenses and simulates the outcomes of claims
liabilities using models. These models are simplified
representation of many legal, social and economic forces
and may not be entirely appropriate for the types of
insurance business being analysed. It is certain that actual
future claims and claims expenses will not develop exactly
as projected and may vary significantly from the
projections.

In estimating the liability for the costs of reported claims
not yet paid the Group considers any information available
from loss adjusters and information on the costs of settling
claims with similar characteristics in previous periods.
Large claims are assessed on a case-by-case basis or
projected separately in order to allow for the possible
distortive effect of their development and incidence on
the rest of the portfolio.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(a) Insurance risk (Continued)

(i) Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future
claims payments (Continued)

Where possible, the Group adopts multiple techniques to
estimate the required level of provisions. This provides a
greater understanding of the trends inherent in the
experience being projected.The projections given by the
various methodologies also assist in estimating the range
of possible outcomes. The most appropriate estimation
technique is selected taking into account the
characteristics of the business class and the extent of the
development of each accident year.

(b) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss that results from movements
in market rates and prices.The Group’s market risk arises
from trading position in the financial instruments taken
from proprietary trading which is subject to mark-to-
market valuation.The risk includes potential losses arising
from changes in foreign exchange rates, interest rates and
equity prices.

The Group’s risk management objective is to enhance
shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within
acceptable limits. The Group’s control of market risk is
based on restricting individual operations to trading
within a list of permissible instruments authorised by the
Board to ensure all risks arising are thoroughly identified,
properly measured and adequately controlled.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i)  Currency risk

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of loss due to adverse
movements in foreign exchange rates relating to
investments denominated in foreign currencies.The Group
mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland China and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from recognised
assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations denominated in various currencies, primarily
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”).

In respect of receivables and payables held in currencies
other than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure
is kept to an acceptable level, by buying and selling foreign
currencies at spot rates where necessary to address short-
term imbalances.

The Group’s borrowings are denominated in the functional
currency of the entity taking out the loan or, in the case of
entities whose functional currency is Hong Kong dollars,
in either Hong Kong dollar or the United States dollar.
Given this, management does not expect that there will
be any significant currency risk associated with the Group’s
borrowings.
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3.1 HAEE B E () 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) i35 K (%) (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) E¥EE ) (i) Currency risk (Continued)

TRIIFAEER AR BAREE HER
IR AERNEEEREMN
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The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s
exposure at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets and liabilities denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the entity
to which they relate:

2008 2007
AREFIL| AR%TTT
RMB ‘000 RMB 000
AEE The Group
EH b FE UR BR X Other debtors 381 12,399
BHEeRIBITERE Cash and bank balances 13,719 111,539
HMEMFRRRETER Other creditors and accruals (14,502) (1,865)
giize Deposits received — (70,000)
EREEFEHEN Deposits received for disposal of
IRBEENRS non-current asset held-for-sale — (8,000)
(402) 44,073
2008 2007
AREFIT| AR¥ETT
RMB ‘000 RMB 000
AATF The Company
H{h FE UK BR X Other debtors 370 12,390
BEeRIBTER Cash and bank balances 12,725 110,299
HEMNRARESTER Other creditors and accruals (14,501) (1,862)
eiizs Deposits received = (70,000)
EWHERELHER Deposits received for disposal of
IRBEENZES non-current asset held-for-sale = (8,000)
(1,406) 42,827
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3 AR E () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 BAEE B R () 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) TR BE (F) (b) Market risk (Continued)
() EXEkE (&) (i) Currency risk (Continued)
TRIIRKTEBR A AT AEEARE The following table indicates the approximate change in
EXHENSEREEEHEAIE AR the Group’s and the Company'’s profit after taxation (and
HAKERAQTHNBRE B ERN (RIREB retained profits) and other components of consolidated
R Fl) &ﬁ%*&%‘ﬁﬁf@%ﬂﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ%iﬂ@ﬁ equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the
Nl foreign exchange rates to which the Group and the
Company have significant exposure at the balance sheet
date:
2008 2007
HRHE Hign HRH % HER
SERBE B RER SR HERGEE BARRE Hiv@m
I/ (F) beelliof 22 hawpE LR/ (TR BN E Homze
Increase/ Effect on Effect on Increase/ Effect on Effect on
(decrease) in profit after other (decrease) in profit after other
foreign taxation and components foreign taxation and components
exchangerate  retained profits of equity exchangerate  retained profits of equity
=304 BETFT BETFT Al BEFT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HKS'000 HKS$'000
F5E The Group
N Renminbi 5 (23) - 5 2353 -
(5) 23 = (5 (2,353) -
FAT The Company
N Renminbi 5 (80) - 5 2,286 -
(5) 80 - (5) (2,:286) =

FSBREDNHBRREREZEHC NG
ERBARCHAREEEERNZA
FEzEMTAZEYER  MABH
b BB R R R) EFTE -

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied
to each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
financial instruments in existence at that date, and that all
other variables, in particular interest rate, remain constant.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Market risk (Continued)
(i)  Currency risk (Continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange rates
over the period until the next balance sheet date. In this
respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between the
Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be
materially unaffected by any changes in movement in
value of the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the
Group entities’ profit after taxation and equity measured
in the respective functional currencies, translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rate ruling at the
balance sheet date for presentation purposes.The analysis
is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(i) Pricerisk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk on investments
held by the Group classified on the balance sheet as
available-for-sale financial assets or as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

The Group's equity investments held for trading are listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. Decisions to buy or
sell trading securities are based on the performance of
individual securities compared to that of the index and the
Group's liquidity needs. Investments held in the available-
for-sale portfolio comprise equity investments listed on
the Stock Exchange of Shanghai and unlisted equity
investments. The listed equity investments have been
chosen based on their long term growth potential and are
monitored regularly for performance against expectations.
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Yo % B L () 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 WMEEEEE (E) 3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) i3 K (%) (b) Market risk (Continued)
(i) EBEELE (&) (i) Price risk (Continued)
TRITAEERARNTREEBREE The following table indicates the approximate change in
HEREMSESLHBENSE A EEE the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation (and
EZERERYEARERRADTHIBRE retained profits) and other components of consolidated
#af (RIRBEA) RGeS EMmA equity in response to reasonably possible changes in the
BRI EENANTE . relevant stock market index for listed investments to which
the Group and the Company have significant exposure at
the balance sheet date:
2008 2007
Kk High HIRB% HiEgs
HRRREY BHRRED Hilm  EEEREZE BRRRE H 4R
7/ (TH) BHHEE BAMEE LA/ (TR gl 2 i
Increase/ Effect on Effect Increase/ Effect on Effect
(decrease) profit after on other (decrease) profit after on other
in the relevant taxation and components in the relevant taxation and components
risk variance  retained profits of equity risk variance  retained profits of equity
BRk BEFT BEFT Balt BETT BEFT
% HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HKS'000
350 The Group
IHREZ Stock market index in
HERTES respect of listed
investments
BERE Hang Seng Index 5 61 - 5 102 =
(5) (61) = () (102) =
LRREEY Shanghai Composite Index 5 - 17,170 5 = 33,405
(5) - (17,170) (5 — (33,405)
FA5 The Company
IhifEZ Stock market index in
HERTES respect of listed
investments
BEEY Hang Seng Index 5 3 — 5 1 =
(5) (3) = (5) (1) =
LEGARY Shanghai Composite Index 5 = 17,170 5 = 33,405
(5) = (17,170) (5) = (33,405)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(i) Price risk (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the reasonably possible changes in the stock market index
had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at
that date. It is also assumed that the fair values of the
Group’s and the Company’s equity investments would
change in accordance with the historical correlation with
the relevant stock market index, that none of the Group’s
and the Company'’s available-for-sale investments would
be considered impaired as a result of a reasonably possible
decrease in the relevant stock market index, and that all
other variables remain constant. The stated changes
represent management’s assessment of reasonably
possible changes in the relevant stock market index over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date.The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks

Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a
financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk
that future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group’s interest bearing assets and liabilities mainly
comprise bank deposits and bank borrowings
denominated in floating rates which expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risks.The Group manages these risks
primarily through maintaining the maturity profile of these
assets and liabilities within a short period and monitoring
the market interest rate movements so that the Group can
react accordingly when there are adverse interest rate
movements.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(ii) ~ Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s and the Company’s net borrowings at the balance
sheet date. For this purpose the Group defines “net
borrowings” as being interest-bearing financial liabilities
less interest-bearing investments (excluding cash held for
short term working capital purposes):

2008 2007

ERHE R E ERA = REE
Effective Carrying Effective Carrying
interest rate amount interest rate amount
=F 74 BRFT Aot BEFT
% HK$'000 % HK$'000

FEEREFAT The Group and

the Company
FEAE Variable rate

RITEXN Bank borrowings 2.8 143,536 53 184,010

20085128318 » MR REE 7~
TF100EES > MAAEEMEEERS
N AT AREERAQAT ZHREBREF
RRBEFEERD MY B 162
Bt (200745 : B¥1378T) ©

At 31st December 2008, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, would decrease/increase
the Group’s and the Company’s profit after taxation and
retained profits by approximately HK$1.62 million (2007:
HK$1.37 million).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Market risk (Continued)

(iii)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risks (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the changes in interest rate had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

(¢) Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk, which is the risk that a
customer or counterparty will be unable to or unwilling
to fulfill its repayment obligations for amounts due to the
Group.The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
insurance related receivables and other receivables.

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by screening
the counterparties, on-going monitoring and acquiring
collateral from counterparties.

Insurance receivables are required to meet the Group’s
established financial requirements and provide third party
guarantees to the Group when it considered necessary.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer.

The maximum exposure to credit risk without taking into
account of any collateral held is represented by the
carrying amount of each financial asset in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The
Group does not provide any guarantees which would
expose the Group or the Company to credit risk.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(c) Credit risk (Continued)

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from insurance receivables
are set out in Note 23.

As at 31st December 2008, bank balances were placed with
reputable financial institutions with diversification.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter
difficulty in raising funds to meet its cash flow needs or
commitments. Liquidity risk may result from either inability
to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values, a counter-
party failing on repayment of a contractual obligation or
an insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected.

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants,
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash,
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
short term investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturity value at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or, if floating,
based on rates current at the balance sheet date) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required
to pay:
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity holders of
the Company and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost
of capital.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as total debts divided by total net assets. For
this purpose the Group defines total debts as total
borrowings and advances as shown in the consolidated
balance sheet.Total net assets comprises all components
of equity attributable to equity holders of the Company
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet.

During 2008, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2007, was to maintain the gearing ratio within 25%.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity
holders of the Company, issue new shares, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio of the Group at 31 December 2008 and
2007 were as follows:

2008 2007

BEFIT BT T

HK$’000 HKS'000

BERFBR Total borrowings and advances 143,536 184,010
EEFEARE Total net assets 2,248,182 2,632,338
BXEEE Gearing ratio 6.4% 7.0%
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted primarily from
the decrease in bank loans outstanding at 31 December
2008 due to the repayment of the bank loans of HK$41
million during the year (Note 31).

Pursuant to the capital requirements imposed by the
Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a
subsidiary of the Company, Min Xin Insurance Company
Limited (“MXIC"), should maintain at least HK$20 million
in its adjusted net assets calculated according to the
requirements set out in the Insurance Ordinance. In order
to fulfill these requirements, MXIC may adjust the dividend
paid to the Company or issue new shares to the Company.
If MXIC cannot maintain the capital requirements imposed,
the Commissioner of Insurance may place restrictions on
the operations of MXIC.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT

The preparation of financial statements requires
management to make estimates and assumptions
concerning the future that affect the reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in these
consolidated financial statements. The application of
assumptions and estimates means that any changes of
them, either due to changes of management’s judgement
or the evolvement of the actual circumstances, would
cause the Group’s financial position and results to differ.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

Estimates and judgement are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The Group
believes that the assumptions and estimates that have
been made in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are appropriate and that the
consolidated financial statements therefore present fairly
the Group’s financial position and results in all material
respects.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next twelve months are
discussed below.

(a) Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

The unlisted equity interest in Fujian Hua Yuan City
Constructon Environment Protection Co., Ltd. (“Fujian Hua
Yuan”) held by the Group was reclassified from non-current
asset classified as held-for-sale to available-for-sale
financial assets when the Group terminated the agreement
entered into in December 2007 during the year. The
carrying amount at the date of the subsequent decision
not to sell was re-measured as the cost of the available-
for-sale financial assets.

The Group reviews at the balance sheet date to assess
whether the unlisted investment is impaired in accordance
with the accounting policy stated in Note 2.10(a)(iii). In
making this judgement, the Group evaluates,among other
factors, the extent to which the fair value of this investment
is less than its cost, the financial health and results of
operation of and near-term business outlook for Fujian
Hua Yuan.As at 31st December 2008, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$0.33 million against the
investment in Fujian Hua Yuan in the consolidated income
statement (Note 21(a)).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(b) Estimate of fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value of investment properties
held by the Group is current prices in an active market for
similar lease or other contracts. In the absence of such
information, the Group determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making this
judgement, the Group considers information including
current prices in an active market for properties of different
nature, condition or location (or subject to different lease
or other contracts), adjusted to reflect those differences
or recent prices of similar properties in less active markets,
with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that occurred
at those prices. As at 31st December 2008, the fair value of
the Group’s investment properties was HK$86.71 million
(Note 16).

(c) Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in various
jurisdictions. Judgement is required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain.Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination
is made. As at 31st December 2008, the Group had deferred
tax liabilities of HK$7.2 million (Note 32).Should the actual
applicable tax rate differ by 1%, the deferred income tax
liabilities would increase or decrease by approximately
HK$0.35 million.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB

Group”)

The Group’s major jointly controlled financial institution,
XIB Group, is principally engaged in the banking business
(Note 19). In preparing its statutory financial statements
in accordance with the China Accounting Standards
(“CAS"), certain critical accounting estimates and
judgement have been applied as described below:

—  Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments that are not quoted
in active markets are determined by XIB Group using
valuation techniques. Valuation techniques used include
discounted cash flows analysis and models.To the extent
practical, models use only observable data, however areas
such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), volatilities
and correlations require management to make estimates.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect
reported fair value of financial instruments.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

— Impairment allowances on loans and advances

XIB Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
regularly,and would further assess impairment loss when
there are indications of impairment. Objective evidence
of impairment includes observable data indicating that
there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from an individual loan, observable data indicating
that there has been an adverse change in the payment
status of borrowers in a group (e.g., payment delinquency
or default), or national or local economic conditions that
correlated with defaults on assets in the group. The
individual impairment loss is based upon management'’s
best estimate of the present value of cash flows which are
expected to be received discounted at the original
effective interest rate.When assessing the impairment loss
of a loan portfolio under the collective evaluation method,
management uses estimates based on historical loss
experience, which subjects to adjustments according to
observable data to reflect the current economic
conditions, for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows.The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both
the amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed
regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates
and actual loss experience.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB

Group”) (Continued)
—  Equity Participation Plan

A subsidiary of XIB Group has set up the Equity
Participation Plan ("EPP”) for their eligible employees,
which is cash-settled share-based payment transaction. XIB
Group shall re-measure the fair value of the liability in
relation to the EPP at each balance sheet date, with any
changes in fair value recognised in income statement for
the year. Significant judgement, such as probability of
fulfilling vesting conditions at each balance sheet date and
the duration of vesting period, is required to be made by
management in the measurement of the fair value of the
liability in relation to the EPP.

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments

As at 31st December 2008, an unlisted equity investment
held by XIB Group was measured at cost in accordance
with CAS. For the purpose of financial reporting of the
Group in accordance with the accounting policy stated in
Note 2.3(c), the Group has appointed an independent
professional valuer to assess the fair value of the equity
investment held by XIB Group and re-measured at fair
value in these consolidated financial statements.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(i)  Xiamen International Bank and its subsidiaries (“XIB
Group”) (Continued)

—  Valuation of long-term equity investments (Continued)

The fair value of the equity investment has been estimated
using a market comparison approach by the independent
professional valuer. Based on the market ratio (e.g., price/
earning and price/book ratios) of a number of listed
companies engaged in similar industries as the investee
and the investee’s historical financial information,
management of the Group makes estimates and
judgement on the appropriate adjustments required to
reflect the circumstances of the investee, including the
liquidity discount applicable to the shares of the investee
as compared to those of a listed company, for fair value
estimation purposes. As at 31st December 2008, the
Group’s attributable share of the fair value gain (after
deferred tax adjustment) arising from this investment,
which is accounted for in the investment revaluation
reserve, was HK$76.66 million. To the extent that the
liquidity discount rate differs by +/-1%, the Group'’s
investment revaluation reserve (after tax) will decrease and
increase by HK$1.06 million respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(d) Critical accounting estimates and judgement of
jointly controlled entities (Continued)

(ii) Min Faith Investments Limited and its subsidiaries
(“MFL Group™)

MFL Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing
and distribution of digital instruments and auto-
equipments, and investing in strategic investments for
income and capital appreciation purposes (Note 19). In
preparing its statutory financial statements under HKFRSs,
certain critical accounting estimates and judgement have
been applied as described below:

—  Valuation of available-for-sale financial assets

As at 31st December 2008, MFL Group held less than 5%
equity interests in both two unlisted companies
incorporated and operated in Mainland China and
measured the investments at cost of HK$18.32 million.
According to the Group'’s preliminary assessment of the
fair value of these equity investments using different
valuation techniques, the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant and the
probabilities of the various estimates within the range
cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair
value, hence these equity investments are precluded from
measuring at fair value.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
market (such as trading and available-for-sale securities)
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date. Quoted market prices
or dealer quotes for similar instruments are used for long-
term debt.Other techniques, such as estimated discounted
cash flows, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade
receivables and payables are assumed to approximate
their fair value. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future
contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate
that is available to the Group for similar financial
instruments.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

In the Directors’ opinion, the fair values of financial assets
and financial liabilities of the Group approximate their
carrying values at the balance sheet date.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in financial services,
property development and investment, investment
holding businesses, industrial instrument manufacturing
and toll road investment.

The Group’s turnover represents gross insurance
premiums, insurance brokerage commission, rental
income, dividend income from available-for-sale financial
assets, bank interest income and management fee income.

The amount of each significant category of revenue
recognised during the year is as follows:

2008 2007
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
—F %] Turnover
EREBWA Gross insurance premiums 60,892 48,437
REELAEBA Insurance brokerage commission 876 989
REMERSKA Rental income from investment properties 6,421 5,828
AHHESRERE Dividend income from available-
iz 2 A for-sale financial assets 24,476 30,996
BITERFE WA Interest income from bank deposits 5,837 6,520
EBE Management fees 120 120
 me|  928%
RMHIREEH Movement in unearned insurance
premiums (7,545) 6,760
BRESEEBREA Reinsurance premiums ceded and
EEARMAREEZE reinsurers’ share of movement in
unearned insurance premiums | (_7_,_?{1_5_) _________(_9_,]_7_2_)
Hauk A Other revenues
BEEEN LLmKRE Dividend income from listed equity
EEREWA securities held for trading 91 31
Hit Others 1,745 1,816
1,836 1,847
PN L Total revenues 85,168 92,325
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's
business and geographical segments. Business segment
information is presented as the primary reporting format
pursuant to the Group’s internal financial reporting system.

Business segments

The Group’s activities comprise the following major
business segments:
Financial services — underwriting of general

insurance, insurance
brokerage, investing in
banking business and
trading in securities for short

term profit

Property development — development and sale of

and investment residential properties,
leasing of investment
properties for rentals and
investing in properties to
gain from the long term
appreciation in their values
Investment holding

— investing in strategic

and others investments and other
assets for income and
capital appreciation

purposes

Industrial instrument — investing in manufacturers
manufacturing and distributors of digital

instruments

Toll road investment — investing in toll road projects

in Mainland China
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENTAL INFORMATION
(Continued)

Geographical segments

The Group operates in three principal economic
environments, namely Hong Kong, Mainland China and
Macao.The Group’s insurance and investment activities are
mainly conducted in Hong Kong whilst the Group’s
property development activities and the major investees
are located in Mainland China.The Group also carries out
certain insurance underwriting activities in Macao.

In presenting geographical segmental information,
segment revenue is presented based on the geographical
location of customer or the investee. Segment assets and
capital expenditure are presented based on the
geographical location of the assets.
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6 Atz — FH 6 OTHER GAINS — NET
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HKS’000 HK$’000
RAFEBBIERIIE Fair value (losses)/gains on listed equity
WEmREERSAFE securities measured at fair value
(B518) W through profit or loss (2,070) 260
REVEEML A FERE Fair value gains on revaluation of
(FE*%16) investment properties (Note 16) 3,201 13,799
HEREYERR Gain on disposal of investment properties 1,725 —
HEMHBEESRMEEWE Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
(FE#21(b)) financial assets (Note 21(b)) — 49,655
0E 5 U &2 5 EE Net exchange gains 2,386 9,345
Hth Others — 58
5,242 73,117

NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

&/ AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS'000
RBEEELEREEEFRE (@) Netinsurance claims incurred on

insurance business (a) 17,572 16,361

REEEREENEELER (b) Commission expenses incurred on
insurance business (b) 21,947 23,177
39,519 39,538
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NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(a) Net insurance claims incurred on insurance

business
2008
4 BRIR B
Gross Reinsurance Net
EBETFT EBETT EETT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$'000
FEERERBARE Current year claims and loss
ZH adjustment expenses 15,384 (280) 15,104
ATEERERBLAAR Additional cost for prior years’ claims
& AN AR and loss adjustment expenses 2,536 248 2,784
EREEREHENERE (Decrease)/increase in claims
CRLD) /#hn incurred but not reported (2,310) 2,005 (305)
Kom A E ks < TR E Decrease in the expected cost of
AR claims for unexpired risks (11) — (11)
15,599 1,973 17,572
2007
EE BRE B
Gross  Reinsurance Net
BT T BET T BEFT
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FEERERBARE Current year claims and loss
EA adjustment expenses 17,257 (42) 17,215
AFEBERBLAAE (Run-off savings)/additional cost
BN REEMXRIER) /  for prior years' claims and loss
RN AR adjustment expenses (1,596) 348 (1,248)
EREEREBNEE (Decrease)/increase in claims
(R2) /1 incurred but not reported (6) 7 1
KomE R R 2 FEETEEE Increase in the expected cost of
FX AR IE claims for unexpired risks 393 — 393
16,048 313 16,361
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7 RBEBEAENEMEFEHELM 7 NET INSURANCE CLAIMS INCURRED

&M (3)

(b) TREEZEREANMHEER

AND COMMISSION EXPENSES INCURRED
ON INSURANCE BUSINESS (Continued)

(b) Commission expenses incurred on insurance

business
2008 2007
BETIT BT T
HKS’000 HKS'000
ENREMFHEEES Gross commissions paid and payable 22,737 23,874
B Bk ERE Less: Commissions received and
Rz AAE receivable from reinsurers (790) (697)
HeE R T4 Net commission expenses 21,947 23,177
Bk (B1R) 8  OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT
2008 2007
BEFT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B (ER), BT A Operating (loss)/profit is stated after
IR T 5B IR ¢ crediting and charging the following:
it Crediting
0E 5 U &8 EE Net exchange gains 2,386 9,345
BREYED WK EWFESL ©  Rentals received and receivable from
HKREEZEAR investment properties less direct
outgoings 5,554 4,621
0B Charging
ERE#HE Depreciation and amortisation 6,356 4,855
HEWEE - HEERFE Loss on disposal of property, plant
Ei=] and equipment 23 6
AHHEESMEERE Impairment loss on available-for-sale
B8 GEE21(@) financial assets (Note 21(a)) 325 —
EitEEXBOES Operating lease rentals in respect of land
and buildings 1,223 758
% ST BN Auditor’s remuneration 3,040 3,133
EEE GEE37(0)) Management fee (Note 37(c)) 1,880 1,880
RIKEBEFIK A (a) Retirement benefit costs (a) 728 641
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8

3% (a1 mAl ()

(a)

1£2000F 11 308 A » AEERE—
BREMREE (REMKETED
MR MEEERZEBREEEH
2 RN B2 EERAEEZ
EESHEE BHBELEEESR
& - EE2000511A308 REMK
FFEIRRBEE AR AEEEE
1B S s HI M ATE S FTE (58
BEFE)) ARRERL - REE
kEEHZTEZHAEUEER
KAHZEDZTHFE -

rEBEFAOBESTTE 2 HEE
BH Rk B RESEEAAFESD
21 (2000F9 A30HEMAMES
ZHRBAAHERBHFEIZ
N REEBRABARANESZE
LB SERBEFE URSHIEB
#2,000T AR) - EEEEE2E
AR F 25 A B B R N ET 81 AT 0% Uk
ZHRBEALAERD AEE @R
ERFGTEIR BB ST B 2K -
7 2008F K 2007F 12831 H I &
FEAMERRBEZFWMERK ©

RPBEABHEEMNS - AEBET
BEAHHAEPERDEBEE £
B2 ME it BT &SR AET
g - AEEREEHFE2EILD
BHEHEERS AR - ME
BT REEEREEFREREEN
RAKBENEE -

8

OPERATING (LOSS)/PROFIT (Continued)

(a)

The Group contributed to a defined contribution
scheme ("DC Scheme”) which was available to all
eligible Hong Kong employees prior to 30th
November 2000.The assets of the scheme were held
separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. Contributions to
the scheme by the Group and employees were
calculated at 15% of the employees’ basic salary until
30th November 2000 when the DC Scheme was
replaced by a mandatory provident fund scheme
("MPF Scheme”) set up under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance.

The Group’s monthly contributions (mandatory and
voluntary) to the MPF Scheme for each employee are
calculated at the higher of 10% (or 6% for employees
who joined after 30th September 2000) of the
monthly basic salary and 5% of the monthly total
income, subject to a maximum contributions of
HK$2,000. The Group’s contributions to the DC
Scheme and MPF Scheme can be reduced by the
Group’s voluntary contributions forfeited in relation
to those employees who leave the schemes prior to
vesting fully in the contributions. At 31st December
2008 and 2007, there were no material unutilised
forfeited contributions.

For Mainland China employees, the Group
participates in the employee pension schemes
administered by the respective municipal
government in various locations in Mainland China
where the Group operates. The Group makes
monthly contributions calculated at a percentage of
the monthly payroll costs to these schemes and the
respective municipal government undertakes to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of the
employees of the Group.
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il & AR 9  FINANCE COSTS
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
RITEFAE GEE31) Interest on bank loans (Note 31) 7,460 9,622

W ARAT BN B & e T A B

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS

T 4 2 A8 el N\t AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(a) EHMWE (a) Directors’ emoluments
g RE
R H 2R -
REMF
Salaries,
EE#E  housing, other 2008
Directors’ allowances and pOkE]
fees benefits in kind Total
BEFT BEFTT BEFTT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HITES Executive Directors
THELRE (FF) Mr. Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 100 - 100
RERELE BEE) Mr. Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman)’ 60 = 60
REMEE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 — 60
B -5V Mr. Wang Hui Jin 2 60 — 60
FEFEE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 100 1,039 1,139
FHTES Non-executive Director
BRE&LE Mr. Chen Le ' 60 — 60
BUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBELE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 230 — 230
PEMEE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 300 = 300
BEm Lt Mr. So Hop Shing 230 — 230
1,200 1,039 2,239
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10

1o ARAT BN B % T4 B
P <2 - A8 3l N\t ()

(a) FEHME &)

(Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

& -ERE
R EfRE
REMAE
Salaries,
EZ#WE  housing, other 2007
Directors’  allowances and k]
fees  benefits in kind Total
BETF T BE T BETF T
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HITES Executive Directors
THERE (EF) Mr. Ding Shi Da (Chairman) 100 — 100
RERLE BER) Mr. Chen Gui Zong (Vice Chairman) 60 = 60
REBMRELLE Mr. Zhu Xue Lun 60 _ 60
SEFTRE Mr. Weng Jian Yu 100 1,009 1,109
FHITES Non-executive Directors
Telmtt Mr. Wang Hui Jin 60 — 60
BREEE Mr. Chen Le 60 — 60
BIUFHTES Independent Non-executive Directors
ERBELE Mr. Ip Kai Ming 180 — 180
SEBELE Mr. Sze Robert Tsai To 250 = 250
BEmEE Mr. So Hop Shing 180 — 180
1,050 1,009 2,059
1 R-ZEZEANFHA-T=HFME Resigned on 23rd April 2009
2 R-ZEZEAFHA-—+=HHFME 2 Re-designated on 23rd April 2009
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10

HHEITBANEMNE RO AR 10 SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ EMOLUMENTS
AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

P <= i ol A (B

(b) T4 E R EZ A+

iz )z 2L AREFTAESZ S ME
MERAEENAERSME @R A
T XNFHREALZMEFBNOT ¢

(Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The analysis in note (a) above does not include those
individuals who are not directors but whose emoluments
are among the five highest in the Group. Details of the

emoluments paid to those individuals are as follows:

2008 2007

BEFIT BT T

HK$’000 HKS$'000

& - EERHEAM Salaries, housing and other allowances,

ERL S REYF and benefits in kind 3,890 4,116

4L Bonus 5,550 4,750

9,440 8,866

M £ &6 & Emoluments Band 2008 2007

A& A&

Number of Number of

Individuals Individuals

78 #%1,000,0017T — HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 — 1
78 #51,500,0007T

78 51,500,001 7T - HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 5 4
78 #%2 000,000
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P 5 i 32

EBFBHIRBEAMGSTEREEF
MRBLE16.5% (20075 : 17.5%) IR E
& - PEIRH RIEP B F 2B AIR R
F b 5T FE SR B % R A B P9 e 2 S PY

11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for
the year. Taxation on Mainland China and Macao profits
has been calculated on the estimated assessable profit for

ZBATHRETE -

EREHEBRIEZHBENT ¢

the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in Mainland

China and Macao.

income statement represents:

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated

2008 2007
EEETIT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
EHBiE Current tax
BERNEB Hong Kong profits tax 257 256
R IE Macao taxation 8 85
265 341
TEEEBBRS Over provision in prior years
B IE Macao taxation (10) (1)
EEF1E FERE32) Deferred tax (Note 32)
EREZENEER Relating to the origination and reversal
LEYE of temporary differences 294 4,006
EHZETH Resulting from a decrease in tax rate 11 —
305 4,006
i8R Income tax expense 560 4,346
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12

5 Bi s (3)

REEBBIRRBL AR R 2 B8 B R E R
REBZBEMAE 2 EWRE 2 Z8

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the

WT taxation rate in Hong Kong as follows:
2008 2007
BT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR %5 A& F Profit before taxation 164,487 226,585
BB FE16.5% (20074F: 17.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%
PR ZHIR (2007: 17.5%) 27,140 39,652
Hih@HiBEREHEZ Effect of different taxation rates in other
e tax jurisdictions (216) 1,456
ERFERET LD Effect on opening deferred tax balances
BLEMIBEHR 2 EE resulting from a decrease in tax rate
during the year 11 —
|IERE 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (35,114) (45,723)
TR 2 % Expenses not deductible for taxation
purposes 2,237 2,331
AEBRAZHER AR Increase in unrecognised tax losses and
ErrERIEM deductible temporary differences 6,621 6,569
AIEAARERZBEBEZ Utilisation of tax losses previously
K0 not recognised (22) —
AEEEEFEBRS Over provision in prior years (10) (1
H Aty Others (87) 62
FR8M & Income tax expense 560 4,346

A T 2R FR AT N A ¥

AABDEZEFEABRLGESZANNEREE
SRR BB S 3R 3R A AU E R B 2,411
BT (20074 : B#8,5808 L) °

12 PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of
the Company includes a profit of HK$24.11 million (2007:
HK$85.80 million) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.
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13 BB

13 DIVIDEND
2008 2007
EETIT BT
HK$’000 HKS’000
REERBEIRRERE Final dividend proposed after the
BREERBE3M balance sheet date of 3 HK cents
(20074 : B#Eaql) (2007: 4 HK cents) per ordinary share 13,783 18,377
B E2007F12831HBIEEE  Special dividend proposed for the year
RS RESREER ended 31st December 2007 of
21l 2 HK cents per ordinary share — 9,189
13,783 27,566

EHEERERNBIRKR BT EBRAGZS M
BHRERPIMERE - HEHRBE20095F
NRANBEEFEFFEREENDE -

14 FREF

BREXRBFZRIEARD T EHZE2008F
128318 IEFEEZIEE AELERE
#16,392.78 7t (20074 : #1522 223.9
Bn) RFACRITRMZMEFITH
459,428,656 (20074 : 459,428,656) %
& o

AEERFERBAEFELEDHITA
BEEH2EER  AURBEEFEN
BREZSENESREABFAER -

14

The dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has
not been recognised as a liability in these consolidated
financial statements, but will be reflected as an
appropriation of retained profits for the year ending 31st
December 2009.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the year ended 31st December 2008 of HK$163,927,000
(2007: HK$222,239,000) and the weighted average of
459,428,656 (2007:459,428,656) ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

The Group has no dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue
during the current and prior years and therefore diluted
earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share
for the years presented.
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15 W3 ~ Beas St

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(a) AZEHE (a) The Group
R - &1
%5@&
ENRE
i Furniture,
BRF fixtures, office RE
Building held  and computer Motor k]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BEFTT BETFTT BT BEFT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2007E1818 At st January 2007
A ‘ Cost 9,280 8,468 2,000 19,748
2 ERRESSE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (5,826) (6,036) (587) (12,449)
REFE Net book value 3,454 2432 1,413 7,299
BZ2007E Year ended
NANALEE 31st December 2007
A RMEFE Opening net book value 3,454 2,432 1,413 7,299
ERER Translation differences = 4 (4) =
iR Additions — 433 1,110 1,543
KEEHE Charge for the year (332) (521) (413) (1,266)
HE Disposals = 6) = 6)
HBRREFE Closing net book value 3,122 2342 2,106 7,570
2007E12A318 & At 31st December 2007 and
2008%1A1H 1st January 2008
A ‘ Cost 9,280 8734 3,110 21,124
2 ERRESE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,158) (6,392) (1,004) (13,554)
REFE Net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
HZE2008F Year ended
12831 B EEE 31st December 2008
BREFE Opening net book value 3,122 2,342 2,106 7,570
EREE Translation differences = 13 59 72
=5 Additions = 341 = 341
KEEHE Charge for the year (332) (509) (460) (1,301)
HE Disposals = (23) = (23)
HRREFE Closing net book value 2,790 2,164 1,705 6,659
12008E12A318 At 31st December 2008
A ‘ Cost 9,280 8,988 3,180 21,448
2 ERRESE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (6,490) (6,824) (1,475) (14,789)
IREFE Net book value 2,790 2,164 1,705 6,659
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15 W3¢ > s Maetts (8)

15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Continued)
(b) AATH (b) The Company
R &5
BERR
ERERR
HiE Furniture,
BR#E fixtures, office RE
Building held  and computer Motor ]
for own use equipment vehicles Total
BT BT BT BB
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
200751818 At 1st January 2007
DN Cost 1,185 2,887 2,000 6,072
ZMERAEESE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (382) (1,835) (587) (2,804)
REFE Net book value 803 1,052 1,413 3,268
HZ2007F Year ended
12A31BLEE 31st December 2007
BOEERE Opening net book value 803 1,052 1413 3,268
'R Additions — 41 — 41
REERE Charge for the year (65) (198) (282) (545)
& Disposals — (1) — (1)
HRREFE Closing net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
1200712A31EBR At 31st December 2007 and
(2008F1A1H 1t January 2008
AR ‘ Cost 1,185 2,903 2,000 6,088
ZIAMERAESE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (447) (2,009) (869) (3,325
REFE Net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
HZE2008F Year ended
12A31BLFE 31st December 2008
H A BRI HE Opening net book value 738 894 1,131 2,763
B Additions - 125 — 125
KEEHE Charge for the year (65) (153) (226) (444)
HE Disposals = (20) = (20)
HRREFE Closing net book value 673 846 905 2,424
2008%12A31H At 31st December 2008
A ‘ Cost 1,185 2929 2,000 6,114
ZERRERSE Accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (512) (2,083) (1,095) (3,690)
fREFE Net book value 673 846 905 2,424
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16 #EW*E 16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
F5EE EAT

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT | BYSFr | B¥EFL| BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 | HK$’000 HKS'000

NFE At fair value

M1B1H At 1st January 90,512 76,713 38,012 28,313
PAERELE:S Fair value gain 3,201 13,799 701 9,699
HE Disposal (7,000) — — —
86,713 90,512 38,713 38,012

REBRAQRNREY FERREF

The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s interests in

BHWOT : investment properties at their net book value is as follows:
AEH ¥ N
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT| BT | BETFRT| BT
HKS$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EEBFEEY Leases held in Hong Kong
506 M £ Over 50 years 16,000 14,000 — —
105 &50%5 Between 10 and 50 years 32,000 31,500 — —
EEMEFEEN Leases held outside Hong Kong
10 2505 Between 10 and 50 years 38,713 45,012 38,713 38,012
86,713 90,512 38,713 38,012

REMFEHRBILIEXGEER  F—KF
HEMGERSXBERERA A RESE
HEENGEBBRAR - %20085F12
A3/ BN A FEEESM

Consulting Limited.

The investment properties were revalued based on their
fair values as at 31st December 2008 by independent
professional valuers, namely Savills Valuation and
Professional Services Limited and Vigers Appraisal &
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16 HEWE (8)

16

—XMBARRERFE AT EERE
4,800& T (20074 : B¥4,5508 7T) 1Y
ETREVENERZIHETBRIGE
EEETE  UNCEEHBENERR

=)

&E °

17 FE A b K A bl R 17

REBRARNTWEE Lt I b5
EEDZATEMNEZERLOR o HR2008F
12B31HMEREFEES AT -

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

The title deeds in respect of certain investment properties
in Hong Kong with a fair value of HK$48 million (2007:
HK$45.5 million) held by a subsidiary are placed in the
custody of the Office of the Commissioner of Insurance in
Hong Kong pursuant to the relevant regulatory
requirements.

LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The Group’s and the Company’s interests in leasehold land
and land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments. Their net book value as at 31st December 2008
are analysed below:

FERE AT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

HA %D AR RHE
BE 5% = 28
1B

HI R BREDFE
"W HARBEE
RAEH

PIAFRBERE
BRAEER

130

Opening net book value
Translation differences
Additions

Amortisation

Closing net book value
Less: Amount included in
current assets

Amount included in
non-current assets

BETT | EETT | BETr | BT
HK$’000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HKS'000

331,383 18,335 2,820 2,829
19,860 10,878 — —
— | 305759 — —
(5,055) (3,589) (7) )
346,188 | 331,383 2,813 2,820

(328,440)| (313,342) — =

17,748 18,041 2,813 2,820
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LS e ol J - 05 R RE ()

HE LR+ it ERENREFED T

(Continued)

17 LEASEHOLD LAND AND LAND USE RIGHTS

The net book value of leasehold land and land use rights

mT is analysed as follows:
*%H F48
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT| BT | BEFT| BT
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EEBFEAY Leases held in Hong Kong
506 L £ Over 50 years 4,533 4,554 2,152 2,154
105 £504F Between 10 and 50 years 12,253 12,512 — —
EEMNEFEEN Leases held outside Hong Kong
50F B £ Over 50 years 328,741 313,651 — —
10 E5045F Between 10 and 50 years 661 666 661 666
346,188 331,383 2,813 2,820

AEFHEE TR T ERENRERE
7 #5335 383,867 T (20075 : B #E

335,383,867JC) °©

The cost of the leasehold land and land use rights of the
Group was HK$335,383,867 (2007: HK$335,383,867).
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18 Fff Ja§ 2> W

18 SUBSIDIARIES

F. /N
Company

2008 2007

BT BT T

HKS$’000 HKS’000

I EHRAD, AR Unlisted shares, at cost 58,605 58,605
ERTHEBAR  BE Loans to subsidiaries, interest bearing 279,700 279,700
BERFHBLAR  RE Loans to subsidiaries, interest free 37,169 67,671
MEARIAR  &E Amounts due from subsidiaries, interest free 207,854 148,016
524,723 495,387

583,328 553,992
AR EEE Less: Impairment losses (96,317) (96,309)
487,011 457,683

BTFHBLARNERREXFTIIEIKA
REANRART-EAREER - BT
BRARANEEEFTIRBTRESRRIEM
DEZE BBRITEXEFREMUAEED
UERZE10ENEEFEFTE o

LTHEIBIER2008F12831HER
SENEE EESEBEEATEN
MEBAT - BRBBHPBI > FIFEZR
NEEER -

The loans to and amounts due from subsidiaries are
unsecured and are not repayable within the next twelve
months. The interest bearing loans to subsidiaries are
charged at a spread over Hong Kong Dollar prime rate, at
a spread over Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate or at fixed
rates of 10% per annum.

The following list contains the particulars of those
subsidiaries at 31st December 2008 which principally
affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group.The
class of shares held is ordinary shares unless otherwise
stated.
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18 FfkJag 2 v (%)

18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

E#T
d R kAR N 1]
G2 RAHE PR
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT EH Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
EERT Directly held
SARRERAT Dorfine Development Limited BE RERE® IR 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
REBEREREM Fujian Minxin Investment Consultants % A Rt f1E AR A 100% REBMRK
BRAR R Co, Ltd. M@ BE300ET
The People’s Registered capital Investment
Republic of China HK$3,000,000 consulting services
B (FE) REBRAR Min Xin (China) Investment Limited KERZHEE 1RERIER 100% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BEEEERAR Min Xin Infrastructure Limited REEZBEE 1RER1ER 100% REER
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
BERBERDR Min Xin Insurance Company Limited B 5,5008 I 100% AR
sRE® T —RRBEER
Hong Kong 55,000,000 shares Writing of general
of HKS1 each insurance business
XERBELBRAR Ranger Insurance Brokers Limited £E 60E R 100% RIRER
BRE® T
Hong Kong 600,000 shares Insurance
of HKS1 each brokerage services
ABERAH Take Chance Company Limited i RERE® 1T 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
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(1) FRBERKESTMEBIERZ
DNE - BELARZEEFEREHX
BORNEARERESHIEZ0.1%R

0.06% °

(2 HEREZENEDLSE

18 FihE o v () 18 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
EET
R RHMRE F5E
GEn RAHE ittt 543
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation  of issued and equity Principal
AT &R Name of company and operations  paid up capital interest activities
EERE @) Directly held (Continued)
Thousand Limited Thousand Limited RERZBEE RBR1ER 100% RELR
British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding
LEERERAA Welljet Development Limited £ RERE® T 100% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
BERE Indirectly held
BEHERRAF Min Xin Properties Limited ¥ 5008 K 100% REERR
BRB®IT
Hong Kong 5,000,000 shares [nvestment
of HK$1 each holding
BEGEMEXZEBMRAA?  Minkin (Suzhou) Property hEARLNE AR 100% NEERRHE
Development Co., Ltd. @ BT
The People’s Registered capital Property
Republic of China  HK$200,000,000 development
and sale
Wide Exposure Developments  Wide Exposure Developments RERZBEE RER1ER 100% REER
Limited Limited British 1 share of US$1 Investment
Virgin Islands holding

(1)  Company not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The net

assets and turnover attributable to this company represent

approximately 0.1% and 0.06% respectively of the Group's

consolidated totals.

(2)  Wholly foreign-owned enterprises in Mainland China
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19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

N E AAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BT | BYFr | BEFIL | B¥ T
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS’000
FEETRRH » A Unlisted investments, at cost — — | 210,805 210,805
EHEEFE Share of net assets 1,126,728 923,502 — —
R EEE Less: Impairment losses — — (5,005) (5,005)
1,126,728 923,502 205,800 205,800
ERT—HEES Loan to a jointly controlled
B (b entity (b) 16,334 16,334 — —
REHE (a) Total investments (a) 1,143,062 939,836 | 205,800 205,800
LM » A  Unlisted investments, at cost 210,805 210,805

(@ FTEERAREFERZRED N (@) The Group's investments in jointly controlled entities
mT are analysed below:
BB R 1T
Xiamen Hip Fob ]
International Bank Others Total
BT BEETFIT BEETFIT
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
20071818 At 1st January 2007 708,855 32,633 741,488
X =5 Translation difference 41,706 1,872 43,578
B RRE & F R T Share of net profit after taxation 141,357 6,083 147,440
REEMREESEM Increase in investment
revaluation reserve 7,330 — 7,330
M2007F 128318 K At 31st December 2007 and
200851818 1st January 2008 899,248 40,588 939,836
E 5 ZEZE Translation difference 22,623 2,028 24,651
FEEBRFE & FRR Share of net profit after taxation 164,662 5,943 170,605
REBMEHELEM,  Increase/(decrease) in
O ) investment revaluation reserve 8,380 (410) 7,970
2008%12H31H At 31st December 2008 1,094,913 48,149 1,143,062
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] 42 ) L 88 (B

(b) HERBEEH  REREREE
AR e

AEBRARAEEREHLERNTFH
RITERNAFEH SRS - LR
REEERERBITEFRA G8
37@@) °

DUTHERBEER20085F12 831 B A
EENEENEEEERTENHEIE

19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

(b) The loan is unsecured, interest free and has no fixed
repayment terms.

Bank deposits placed by the Group and the Company with
jointly controlled financial institutions in the normal
course of business are included in cash and bank balances
(Note 37(a)).

The following list contains the particulars of those jointly
controlled entities at 31st December 2008 which

HER HEERIHFRAFELTA principally affected the results or assets of the Group. All
A e of these entities are unlisted corporates.
iR BETR FREH
G2 HRRE AR
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HEAMHERER Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE Directly held
BB RIT - Xiamen International Bank, REARENE TMER 36.75% HITRRELER
REHBAF and its subsidiaries AR¥6E T
R #43,460334B T
The People’s Registered capital Banking and
Republic of China  RMB600,000,000 and investment holding
HK$434,603,340
BERREBRAF Fortune Right Investment Limited £4 WBRES 1T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
RFAERRT Luso International Banking Limited 5! 0B ARK 36.75% ®1T
1568 BREMR
HFI#1,0007
Macao 300,000 Class A Banking
and 15,600 Class B
Shares of

MOP1,000 each
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19 b [ il B A8 (3) 19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)
R EETR FREH
E2n HRRE Bk
Place of Particulars Group's TREH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
LEEHIEELHE Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EEHKE (B) Directly held (Continued)
EEREERLA Setwide Investments Limited £B WRBRES T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HK$1 each investment
RERRERAT Silver Win Development Limited BB WRBREE T 36.75% NERE
Hong Kong 2 shares Property
of HKS1 each investment
EMERREERAR Xiamen International Investment £4 18R 36.75% REER
Limited BRELIT
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
XIB Properties Limited XIB Properties Limited FlBE 18R 36.75% NxERE
BEHERR
Liberia 100 shares Property
of no par value investment
BERE Indirectly held
BEESBREAMRATD  Min Faith Investments Limited ", B 18R 40% REER
REHBAH and its subsidiaries SRE¥IT
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
BHEBREBLAL Fuzhou Charm Faith Autosystem ~ REAREAE HfER 40% EER#E
BRARO Co, Ltd." 121B%7% BFER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD1,210,000 and distribution of

BNERBEANR
BRAGO

BAERBEANE
BRAGO

PEARANE

The People’s
Republic of China

AfER
AR#400E T
Registered capital
RMB4,000,000

digital instruments

40% #HE
ETER

Distribution of

electrical products
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19 JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES (Continued)

R EETR FREH
G2y BRRE BRkEL
Place of Particulars Group's TEEH
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
LEEHIEELHE Name of jointly controlled entities  and operations paid up capital interest activities
EERE (&) Indirectly held (Continued)

BNEEBELERER  Fuzhou Charm Faith Instruments  FEARLAE aEX 40% EERHE
BRARO Co, Ltd. SNEET #FER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD500,000 and distribution of
digital instruments
BNERRERER Fuzhou Hi-Tech Instruments PEARER afEX 0% HEHTERR
BRARO Co, Ltd. " AR#1,0038 7 REER
The People’s Registered capital Distribution of
Republic of China RMB10,030,000 digital instruments
and investment
holding
REEBEELEHRE  Tianjin Charm Faith FEAREAE aHEA 20.8% EEREE
BRARO Autoequipment Co,, Ltd. AR%1,000E 7 BB EHRE
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China RMB10,000,000 and distribution of
auto-equipment
HEEBEELER Min Faith Instruments Limited ¥ ELS 204% REZR

BRAR O gRAE% T
Hong Kong 100 shares Investment
of HK$1 each holding
KEZEBERBMATY  Tianjin Charm Faith Instruments ~ FEARLAE HfER 204% EEREE
Co, Ltd. 60X BFER
The People’s Registered capital Manufacturing
Republic of China USD600,000 and distribution of

(1) FLBERKERFIMBEIBEZZ
AE - BEHEQNTRAZEEFERR
BARRBEL BN EAREBGEE R
£8,21.42%8.3.61% °©

digital instruments

(1)  Companies not audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.The

aggregate net assets and profits before taxation

attributable to these companies represent approximately

1.42% and 3.61% respectively of the Group's consolidated

totals.
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B ASSOCIATES

FEH

Group
2008 2007
BT IT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
FEmBH  BmRAK Unlisted investments, at cost — —
EBEEEFE Share of net assets 12,719 10,290
12,719 10,290
BERTHEERNT (b) Loans to associates (b) 24,122 54,816
36,841 65,106
FEEmERM - BB Unlisted investments, at cost 4,453 4,453

MTHEQNRAZEREREENR 28
REREERY -

(a)

(b)

Promise Good Limited ([PGL]) &
HRPEREREEREARREN
MEBASRETFLLEHBARMND
ERRNZZER2007FZRK » &
EEEENHERZBEII0ET
RAEAEERELBE XREEANT
R e

KRATRERXNEPGLIIESR » #5LL
AEERHEKBEHNREARY
7,0008 7t (ZENBME7,4748 T)
BETPGL AEBHRUEIPGL

BERREFBE3 0478 T °

The loans to associates are unsecured, interest free and

have no fixed repayment terms.

(a)

The disposal of the equity interest in the subsidiaries
engaged in toll road investments in Mainland China
to the minority shareholder of those subsidiaries by
Promise Good Limited (“PGL") was completed in 2007
and a gain on disposal of HK$9.1 million shared by
the Group was included in the Group’s share of
results of associates.

The consideration of RMB70 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$74.74 million) received by the
Company in prior years on behalf of PGL was repaid
to PGL on the latter’s demand during the year and
the Group received a repayment of shareholder’s
loans of HK$30.47 million from PGL thereafter.
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DT HERBRERN2008F 12831 REA
SENREREEREAZENHED
B LEREQNTANEHHIRF LT R
= e

20

ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The following list contains the particulars of those

associates at 31st December 2008 which principally

affected the results or assets of the Group. All these

associates are unlisted corporates.

% EBETR FEEH
Ly HRRAHE Atk
Place of Particulars Group's TEER
incorporation of issued and effective Principal
HEATEE Name of associates and operations paid up capital interest activities
RERHE Indirectly held
EREHBRLF Hong Kong Vigorous Limited, B 1BR 30% REER
REKBEAR and its subsidiary gRE® 1T
Hong Kong 10,000 shares Investment
of HKS1 each holding
SRLRBABER Maanshan Huan Tung Highway ~ FEARZHE R 21% 0 HERI
BRAA Development Limited ARH99458 T
The People’s Registered capital Infrastructure
Republic of China RMB99,450,000

(1) FEEERNZHER2000F1 BB A&
EERBE N RRREE AEAH24%
BEEAFER18% R TEFEMH21%

(1)  The profit sharing arrangement commenced from January

2000 and the Group's share of the associate’s profit is 24%

for the first five years, 18% for the next five years and 21%

for the remaining years.
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21

A () 20 ASSOCIATES (Continued)
THBMBEERFEEEREENEE A The financial information of the Group’s associates
ARBESER TN ARE TR extracted from their financial statements prepared in
Fir il < B # HR 3& accordance with the generally accepted accounting

principles in their place of incorporation is as follows:
BE Bf& RRER (9N it #
Assets Liabilities Equity Revenues Profit
BRETTT BETIT BETTT BRI BETT
HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
2008 2008
@t Aggregated 224,773 (56,214) 168,559 61,021 26,383
FREMEGER Group’s attributable
interest 47,923 (11,878) 36,045 13,107 6,153
20075 2007
Mgt Aggregated 287,658 (44,517) 243,141 66,553 53,550
AEBENELRER Group’s attributable
interest 77,714 (12,563) 65,151 14,514 14,449
]k 4 R 21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
AEH AEAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT| BT | BETIT| BT
HK$’000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS'000
NEE At fair value
®1B18 At 1st January 1,140,870 620,768 | 1,140,870 620,768
B EHEN Reclassified from
IRBEEE non-current asset
ik =(6)) classified as
held-for-sale (a) 11,099 — 10,070 —
REREE-HE Fair value (loss)/gain
eREZATHE recognised in investment
(B518) W= revaluation reserve
(FE¥E33) (Note 33) (575,068)| 688,044 | (574,364)| 688,044
RiEmREZN Impairment loss recognised
BEEE (a) in income statement (a) (325) — — —
& (b) Disposal (b) — | (167,942) — | (167,942)
MW12H31H At 31st December 576,576 1,140,870 576,576 1,140,870




—E2Z N\FF R Annual Report 2008

B 265 A R

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21

] At e () 21 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

AEBRAARWAHHERERSN The analysis of the Group’s and the Company’s available-

REESAAOT : for-sale equity securities at their carrying value is as

follows:

AEEH AATF
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

EHREES
EEEERF A
Ik LT REE S

EBEFT| BETrT | BETT| EETT
HK$000 |  HKS'000 | HK$’000 |  HK$'000

Listed equity securities
Stock Exchange of Shanghai 565,802 | 1,140,870 565,802 | 1,140,870
Unlisted equity securities 10,774 — 10,774 —

576,576 | 1,140,870 576,576 | 1,140,870

2008128318 » AEEFETHH The Group held the following available-for-sale equity

HHEERERS

securities as at 31st December 2008:

FEEH

a2 TERH Atk

Place of Principal Group's

ATERE Company name incorporation activities effective interest

ERERENRAERLR Huaneng Power International, Inc. hEARLNE ERHEEES 0.6%

(E3:) (Huaneng Shares”) The People’s  Generationand sale (72 million shares)
Republic of China of electric power

REEERHERERR O Fujian Hua Yuan City Construction hEARLAE FKRIR 25%
BRAR (BEER]) Environment Protection Co., Ltd. RERK
(“Fujian Hua Yuan”) The People’s  Sewage and waste

Republic of China  treatment services
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21 Wt ESBEE (&)

AEBNERLIEA2007F1285T
N EEEGE  BERERERN
E2HREHRIFELENERBEE
BN EARER GFr28) - Z&
ERHEBREFLEZ ANREE
WEHNEBESRMEENRE -

HRAREERNEZERNESEN
REBDR20% » RNREBERELE
BERA IR AEE HRIRET
HEEATZESD -

KT EREBERN D FEBMBRA
WZE ~ IR EBEERE
HA%ERE - 20085128318 -
AEERGEESERAERERE
BB ERERBEBMEIZET °

ABRARQATETERR  BERE
TtEEELR (BERECE] -
REERRS FIAFERBZEAR)
RE  ANREEN2007FEUBR SR
REARBE164738 T (ZEQE
#516,9868 JT) H £ 3,6008 iR ZE &L
BEIBREHRHERLTRMN FRE
RE R o BRFEA IR N
BELHEEBREERENRBIE
B NEEAEZ2007F12831H
LFEFERABRBERFZL B
49668 T - REBERE I EHE
EREEGHFESARINATE
Wi, EIERBRIEERE -

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

(a)

During the year, the Group reclassified the entire
equity interest in Fujian Hua Yuan from non-current
asset classified as held-for-sale to this category when
the Group terminated the agreement entered into
in December 2007 (Note 28).The carrying amount at
the date of the subsequent decision not to sell was
re-measured as the cost of the financial assets.

As the voting right exercisable by the Group in Board
of Directors of Fujian Hua Yuan is less than 20%, the
Group cannot exercises significant influence over the
financial and operating policy decision of Fujian Hua
Yuan.

After an evaluation of the extent to which the fair
value is less than its cost, the financial health and
results of operation of and near-term business
outlook for Fujian Hua Yuan, the Group recognised
an impairment loss of HK$0.33 million against the
investment in Fujian Hua Yuan in the consolidated
income statement as at 31st December 2008.

In order to obtain the consent for the circulation of
Huaneng Shares (previously non-circulating legal
person shares) from Fujian Investment & Enterprise
Holdings Corporation (“FIEC”), the Company’s
substantial shareholder, the Group has disposed of
36 million shares of Huaneng Power International,
Inc.to FIEC in 2007 at a total cash consideration of
RMB164.73 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$169.86 million). The Group recognised a gain
after tax of approximately HK$49.66 million for the
year ended 31st December 2007 when the tax
bureau in Fuzhou, Mainland China issued certificates
of tax exemption for such disposal gain to the Group.
Therefore the Group has not provided any tax
provision against the fair value gains/losses
recognised in investment revaluation reserve.
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22 WRIEHUAS A

22 DEFERRED ACQUISITION COSTS

AEE
Group
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HKS$’000 HKS’000
M1A1H At 1st January 12,944 15,861
& Additions 24,784 20,260
FFABRREHE Amortisation charged to income
(FEE7(b) statement (Note 7(b)) (21,947) (23,177)
M128318 At 31st December 15,781 12,944
23 DR b e ok 23 INSURANCE RECEIVABLE
AEE
Group
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HK$'000 HKS$'000
RIB - BLERFPFNMARK Due from agents, brokers and
intermediates 18,201 12,101
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (2,541) (2,541)
15,660 9,560
EHEBARR Due from contract holders 133 634
BREAXRK Due from reinsurers 591 627
B OBEEE Less: Impairment losses (526) (528)
65 99
15,858 10,293

REEBCRR AR I 2 EEHIR — R0
RE10KTE - REEWNRZFERK
R EEREFTEAF=EHARR B

BREEABRE -

The credit period for the majority of insurance receivable
normally ranges from 90 to 120 days. The credit terms of
insurance receivable, including whether guarantees from

third parties are required, are determined by senior

management.
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23 PR sk (A8)

24

23

72008F 128310 » R EINER KV ERER

2 RBEZEHMWT ¢

INSURANCE RECEIVABLE (Continued)

At 31st December 2008, the ageing analysis of insurance

receivable by invoice date was as follows:

FEHE
Group
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
30A A Within 30 days 3,466 2,450
31Z60H 31-60 days 4,527 2,758
61Z90H 61-90 days 3,880 2,238
#3890 H Over 90 days 3,985 2,847
15,858 10,293
58 B & 24 REINSURANCE ASSETS
FEH
Group
2008 2007
BEFIT BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BREAEERRES Reinsurers’ share of insurance
(%29 liabilities (Note 29) 4,892 7,373

LSRN RER ARBREWR A GEE
23) BREBAXNAREERIRENERX

B EENRIE ©

BREEEEFE —SEEHNtT=@EAZ
W E R RIEBEE 118 T (20074 : B

1678 JT) °

Balance above exclude the amounts due from reinsurers

in respect of claims already paid by the Group on the

contracts that are reinsured, which are included in

insurance receivable (Note 23).

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$0.11 million
(2007: HK$1.67 million) which is expected to be recovered

after twelve months.
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27

At J7 W R K

2007512 A31 A VAR BEIEREE21(b)
BENEREERECENHEENRER
BARE12188 T (ZELNB1,3008
T0) o BERELECREREZEENZ

FRIH o

T2 S8 725 388 48 2 S i Y <
B

25

26

OTHER DEBTORS

The balance at 31st December 2007 included the
remaining balance of consideration for disposal disclosed
in Note 21(b) receivable from FIEC of RMB12.18 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$13 million). FIEC fully
settled the amount during the year.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

xEE AATF
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT| BT | BEFT| BT
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HKS'000
BIEEERMEES ©  Equity securities held for
REBLD trading, listed in
—&WmE Hong Kong
— at market value 1,725 5,247 222 278
Bl 4 S RAT &5 4 27 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

HRERBITEFEERAEEARKILT
PREEFERPEARME TRITZ2ERY
ARY3,7878 T (ZEENEM43008
T)RARB122BET (ZEQBYE
1,44587t) (2007%12831H : 2BIK A
RE¥1531BTRARE11,0308 T -
EENBE12313BREEN, 7778
JT) °

BRESBRMEEEE RE  SHE
EN—ZXHBARELEKAHETLRN
B 6008 T (20075128318 : B#
1,6008 7T) 2E SR BMITFER © M
B AR EFHRME 2728 T (ZED
B 264E ) 2RITFERAFEEM
(REEBE HIEHD) 25 FHRE 2007
F12A318 R8T > £E
HBHE287E TT) ©

Included in cash and bank balances are deposits of
approximately RMB37.87 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$43 million) and RMB12.72 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$14.45 million)
respectively placed with certain banks in Mainland China
by the Group and the Company (31st December 2007:
approximately RMB115.31 million and RMB110.3 million,
equivalent to approximately HK$123.13 million and
HK$117.77 million respectively).

Pursuant to the requirements from the Office of the
Commissioner of Insurance in Hong Kong, a subsidiary
maintains at all times a portion of its funds, being not less
than HK$16 million (31st December 2007: HK$ 16 million),
in bank deposits. That subsidiary has also maintained a
bank deposit of approximately MOP2.72 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$2.64 million) for fulfilling
certain requirements under the Macao Insurance
Ordinance (31st December 2007: approximately MOP2.96
million, equivalent to approximately HK$2.87 million).
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27

28

Bl R BRITHAF (B

RIEA D B FA2007F 25 5] IR T E K1
& ERE3) ZHE  AATMRITER
HEE BB TCER FEMRIBIT KU
BTN RRNEREE (20075F 124 31
H : #8%3,56287T) °

FifE 8 B R B

12007F 128 » RA BRI MIHEUI A
R#1,0608 T (ZENBY1,2148 7T)
WREBEZENEEZRNZE25%K
Y —BIYE=% (ZER]) -

ERBROBENIERELHRESR
EER2008F 12 B RK I Pl o
HAbRERERNREREF I EAITMH
HESHEE  WUHBRETHEZ
HEEREESIR FEE210) °

BRHA2007F W ER A R¥8008 7t (EELN
BHESS4E T) MIRE N AATRER
WEZERARM 2608 T (SELNBYE
3078 7T) ° A2008F 128310 » R&#
BARE1,069E T (SENBE1,2148
) e EEEBRATAHMEMER
MRETER -

REEHEZ  ARFACE2BREFHER
ETFZERXR -

27

28

CASH AND BANK BALANCES (Continued)

Pursuant to the requirements of the bank loan agreement
(Note 31) entered into by the Company in 2007, the
Company’s bank balances of approximately HK$8.66
million were charged to the lending bank for the
fulfillment of the Company’s repayment obligations (31st
December 2007: approximately HK$35.62 million).

NON-CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS
HELD-FOR-SALE

In December 2007, the Company entered into an
agreement to transfer its entire 25% equity interest in an
associate, Fujian Hua Yuan, to an independent third party
(the“Buyer”) at a consideration of approximately RMB10.69
million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.14 million).

In December 2008, the Directors resolved to terminate the
above agreement as the deadline for approval and
registration of the transfer of equity interest has been
lapsed. As a result, the equity interest in Fujian Hua Yuan
was reclassified to available-for-sale financial assets (Note
21(a)) at its carrying amount at the date of subsequent
decision not to sell.

In addition to the deposit of RMB8 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8.54 million) received in 2007, the
Company received a sum of RMB2.69 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$3.07 million) from the Buyer during
the year. As at 31st December 2008, the total deposit of
RMB10.69 million (equivalent to approximately HK$12.14
million) was credited to other creditors and accruals in the
consolidated balance sheet.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company has
fully refunded the deposit to the Buyer.
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29 PR A B TR B 29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS
Group
2008 2007
BETIT BT T
HKS’000 HKS$’000
EH# Gross
EERRERBLAAR Claims reported and loss adjustment
EH expenses 22,859 31,452
EREEREREE Claims incurred but not reported 11,267 13,577
34,126 45,029
RmHIRE Unearned premiums 35,633 28,088
AR v HA B B Rk Unexpired risks provision 925 936
RIZETEE £8 Total insurance liabilities, gross 70,684 74,053
FEW B R IE A RRIE Recoverable from reinsurers
EE2RRERBLAAR Claims reported and loss adjustment
&R expenses (368) (1,673)
EERLEBRERERE Claims incurred but not reported (3,229) (5,234)
(3,597) (6,907)
RmBRE Unearned premiums (1,295) (466)
BRIEANEGRESE Total reinsurers’ share of insurance
B FE24) liabilities (Note 24) (4,892) (7,373)
B8 Net
EERRERBRARE Claims reported and loss adjustment
EH expenses 22,491 29,779
DELEBREHFERE Claims incurred but not reported 8,038 8,343
30,529 38,122
KmiRE Unearned premiums 34,338 27,622
Ao HA B B Unexpired risks provision 925 936
RIGEEEE X FE Total insurance liabilities, net 65,792 66,680
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29 fREEE R R IRBRE E (B)

CE2RREER  BAAREAREEH
EERERRESEENHECHERE
HA AT A R ER R AR AU A U [B] YRR o

REESMFESFE —EEHRT=@EA
BB B ,5908 7T (20074 -
M) 0448 TT) ©

(a) LI 35 B O Bt £ 29 AR %

(i)  DRAEMR R TT %

REBERZEG 5% ZRAEH
BRUGTRABERS - BEXHEER
AR -—EWFERMRANGER  BUR
R RESOMBELRRNTGE - &£
BETHBRT  B—XBERAMER S
FESIBHFEANSERTRNTG E
HERENE I ERMAE G o

Rt AEB R ERIBESHEEER
B EACNROCBENBRERE
It LABornhuetter-Ferguson ([ BFJ) 3% &
o

ENRERENBRBRERAELE
ERREX Y RARBEKAE - MBFE
BRIBRATHER L RELRMILRESD
BRITER o BRERAREIL NI
FE  AARACARECBHENBRE
B%E - TREETAEENER - BREK
BESEENMGITTREZREEERERENK
AW—RiBES - EERBREBEERL
REBEBARSERBHBER - RE
BEENMEFN2ERANERBEER
B RABEEERUCHRRE -

29

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)

The liabilities for gross claims reported, loss adjustment
expenses and claims incurred but not reported are net of
expected recoveries from salvage and subrogation.

Included in the net insurance liabilities balance is an
amount of HK$15.9 million (2007: HK$20.44 million) which
is expected to be settled after twelve months.

(a) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts

(i)  Process used to decide on assumptions

The Group uses several statistical methods to incorporate
the various assumptions made in order to estimate the
ultimate cost of claims. The choice of selected results for
each accident year of each class of business depends on
an assessment of the technique that has been most
appropriate to observed historical developments. In
certain instances, different techniques or combination of
techniques have been selected for individual accident
years or groups of accident years within the same class of
business.

In estimating the claims liabilities of the Group’s motor
insurance portfolio, the paid and incurred loss
development methods supplemented by the Bornhuetter-
Ferguson (“BF”) method are applied.

The paid and incurred loss development methods use
historical patterns of claim to project the ultimate cost of
the claims,and the BF method relies on a gradual transition
from an estimated loss ratio to an experience-rated
development. BF method is applied to the more recent
accident years, for which the paid and incurred loss
development methods may yield less accurate results.The
industry wide trends in the claims costs, direct and
reinsurance premium rates and underwriting profitability
for the motor insurance business in Hong Kong are also
considered in the ultimate claims liabilities estimation.The
estimation of the premium liabilities is made by reference
to the projected ultimate loss ratios, which is the estimated
ultimate claims liability divided by the earned premium.
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29 PREEE R L FIRBRE E (B)

(a) #3907 B R B 1 A0 RO AR B

()

(i) REMRITIE ()

ERAEEHMRRASER - RAK
RIBRLERNDERACREMNBRE
Bt BUCRRERFHEHERKX

FERREFERER °

(ii) BIEPE T — DR BT RS 1 B I 1

A HENSBEEUSEREE RN
EZANEEE
NWERBEREEISERENRELEMG
STHERBENAEANBRRERE

RESMETHR - 4

ﬁ}go

AEEREREREBLESEENSER
BN  BHERENRAENED Z
TR EERIABEIMNELNBEIIET
(20074 : B#¥3808 ) (B HIKRBR

) o

BB ARG B B R AR
BROLE - KRR ZBRRRS
BREE - AT R AR BN AL

B RS Tk -

BRTETHERBEIN  REEENRRE
AAEEMGREBEEENEIRER
8o TRV ¥ HEARKEERE —
EMFEMFRRBELFNZEFE
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29

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts (Continued)

(i)  Process used to decide on assumptions (Continued)

For other class of insurance portfolio of the Group, the
incurred loss development methods supplement with the
earned premium and average incurred loss year
development are used to project the estimated ultimate
loss ratio.

(ii) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and

claims development tables

The reasonableness of the estimation process is tested by
an analysis of sensitivity around several difference
scenarios.The change in the monetary awards granted for
bodily injury suffered and also the employers’ liability
claims is the most critical to the assumptions used to
estimate the liabilities for these insurance contracts.

The Group believes that the liability for these claims carried
at the year-end is adequate. However, an increase of 10%
in the cost of these claims would require the recognition
of an additional loss of approximately HK$3.1 million (2007:
HK$3.8 million) net of reinsurance.

The impact on the profit before taxation described above
does not take into account of changes in other variables,
as they are considered to be less material. Such an
assessment and the relative materiality of individual
variables may change in the future.

In addition to scenario testing, the development of
insurance liabilities provides a measure of the Group's
ability to estimate the ultimate value of claims.The top
half of the table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate
of total claims outstanding for each accident year has
changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the
table reconciles the cumulative claims to the amount
appearing in the consolidated balance sheet.
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29 fREEE R R IRBRE E (B) 29

(a) #3915 B O B 40 9 R B
()

(ii) BIESES T — PR B I 1 e IR 1y

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)

(a) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
contracts (Continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and

R R () claims development tables (Continued)
RIGAE(E — B8 Insurance claims — gross
EHEE Accident year 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 423 Total
BEFr BEFn BETn BEFn  BETn | %R
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000 | HK$'000
e R B ERR Estimate of ultimate claims costs
RERER at end of accident year 31,830 36,003 29,854 31,045 26,780
—F% one year later 20,835 27,552 17,114 20,980
—F% two years later 20,986 27,727 17,062
ZER three years later 20,746 26,659
E% four years later 21,037
EHMEGN RS RE Current estimate of cumulative claims 21,037 26,659 17,062 20,980 26,780 | 112,518
ZSETAN Cumulative payment to date (19471) (24242 (13531)  (13,466) (9,036) |  (79,746)
1,566 2417 3,531 7,514 17,744 32,772
TFEERR Liability in respect of prior years 1,354
34,126
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29 PREREH SR bR E () 29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)
(a) b 1 I 75 B R B A B ER (a) Assumptions on short term non-life insurance
(%) contracts (Continued)
(ii) BIEESE ST — IR B T e 1 3 S 1 (ii) Sensitivity analysis — sensitivity of insurance and
R PR () claims development tables (Continued)
RIGAE(E — /B8R Insurance claims — net
ENERE Accident year 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 4% Total
BEFT BEFr BETr BEFn  B¥Tn | BEFRT
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
st RABEAR Estimate of ultimate claims costs
REHER atend of accident year 23,948 28,880 24,421 25,560 23,143
—F#% one year later 18,717 25,614 16,276 20,326
—F# two years later 18,695 25,485 16,116
“E# three years later 18,240 24,639
E® four years later 18,532
BN EE Current estimate of cumulative claims 18,532 24,639 16,116 20,326 23143 | 102,756
ZS R Cumulative payment to date (17,0060  (22222)  (12,585) (12,812 (8,883) | (73,508)
1,526 2417 3,531 7514 14,260 29,248
AEEER Liability in respect of prior years 1,281
30,529
rEBAETHEARBRERI L —RA5 The Group has in place a series of effective reinsurance
BMNDRER  BREEF—BHRET covers on a number of short-term insurance products that
2o have remained unchanged in recent years.
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29

INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in insurance contracts and reinsurance
assets

(i)  Claims and loss adjustment expenses

2008 2007
E1 BRI B8 ESE BRE B
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BETT BETT BT | BEFn  BETn BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE2RER Notified claims 31,452 (1,673) 29,779 39,324 (1,805) 37,519
BREBRER Incurred but not reported 13,577 (5,234) 8,343 13,583 (5,241) 8,342
R1A1A At 1st January 45,029 (6,907) 38,122 52,907 (7,046) 45,861
ERUBSEANER Cash paid for claims settled
during the year (26,513) 1,337 (25,176) (23,533) (174) (23,707)
BN/ (BD) Increase/(decrease) in liabilities
EEEERE arising from current year claims 15,384 (280) 15,104 17,57 (42) 17,215
TEELRE arising from prior year claims 2,536 248 2,784 (1,59) 348 (1,248)
BREBRER arising from incurred but
not reported (2,310) 2,005 (305) (6) 7 1
®12A318 At 31st December 34,126 (3,597) 30,529 45,029 (6,907) 38,122
E2REE Notified claims 22,859 (368) 22,491 31,452 (1,673) 29,779
BREERER Incurred but not reported 11,267 (3,229) 8,038 13,577 (5,234) 8,343
®12A318 At 31st December 34,126 (3,597) 30,529 45,029 (6,907) 38,122
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bR E ()

(b) R 4 440 T A 4 7 5

29 INSURANCE CONTRACTS AND REINSURANCE
ASSETS (Continued)

(b) Movement in insurance contracts and reinsurance

(%) assets (Continued)
(ii) A R 2 2 (ii) Provision for unearned premiums
2008 2007

£8 BRR& ] £ BRE ik
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BEFT ARFn EETn| E¥Tn  BEFn BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R1B1A At 1st January 28,088 (466) 27,622 34,848 (3,292) 31,556
EREM Increase during the year 35,633 (1,295) 34,338 28,088 (466) 27,622
FR&R Release during the year (28,088) 466 (27,622) (34,848) 3,292 (31,556)
R12R318 At 31st December 35,633 (1,295) 34,338 28,088 (466) 27,622

ARBREEBEAAEEAAEEE
FHEAEMREPHNERRBREQNESE -

(iii) A iy A L B 2 A <

Provisions for unearned premiums represent the liability

for short-term insurance contracts for which the Group’s

obligations are not expired at year-end.

(iii) Provision for unexpired risks

2008 2007
E# BRIR FH £t BRE e
Gross Reinsurance Net Gross  Reinsurance Net
BETT AETT AY%Tn | BEFn  BETn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R1A1H At 1st January 936 — 936 543 — 543
ERER),/EM (Release)/increase during the year (1) - (1) 393 = 393
®12A318 At 31st December 925 - 925 936 — 936

RAnBEREGSEAEEAN IS
EEEHERRABREEFSHRRE

BHNEH -

The unexpired risk provision relates to the insurance

contracts for which the Group expects to pay claims in

excess of the related unearned premium provision.
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30 PR B FE A Ak 30 INSURANCE PAYABLE
20085128318 - RGBT BRER At 31st December 2008, the ageing analysis of the
oM (REZEE OT : insurance payable by invoice date was as follows:
*5H
Group
2008 2007
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
30 Within 30 days 3,719 1,056
31260H 31-60 days 2,059 1,163
61£90H 61-90 days 1,654 1,138
#3890 H Over 90 days 2,340 1,956
9,772 5,313
31 SRATEK 31 BANK BORROWINGS
AEEREAT
Group and Company
2008 2007
BT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
IRITER  BEHE Bank loans, secured 143,536 184,010
W BRERRBEERZ Less: Amounts due within one year
—FREHHFRIE included under current liabilities (89,590) (40,422)
53,946 143,588
FiftA 2007 FIREVA B T B EMHIRT The above Hong Kong Dollar denominated bank loans
EXRB() ZFHIHNEZEREHLBE drawn down in 2007 represented (i) three-year floating
18RTIEREE GMN BXZRRERA rate term loans totaling HK$180 million for financing the
A ((BREHMN]) WXBENRE  H property project of Minxin (Suzhou) Property
B EE3,6008 T ERNFAREE ; Ki) — Development Co., Ltd. (“Minxin Suzhou”) of which HK$36
EEARDESHAENIBNRBRE million was repaid during the year; and (ii) a floating rate
MABES00B T ZERERFREH revolving loan of HK$5 million for working capital
fEig o purposes which was fully repaid during the year.
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AT H K (B

72008F 12310 @ ZEHRITEFUR
ANRINRITHE T B 8668 st 2007F
128318 : YB8%356287T)  REE
KBS 7678 NS TY X (BIEHEE
T #EBH) (20075F 128310 : LB
57528 ) KRB AT FEHEERA
AIREEEHMN WIREERIER

RITEREPAUT ¢

31

BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31st December 2008, these bank loans are secured
by the Company’s bank balances of approximately HK$8.66
million (31st December 2007: approximately HK$35.62
million), certain properties (including the leasehold land
component) with a book value of approximately HK$57.67
million (31st December 2007: approximately HK$57.52
million) and share mortgages of the subsidiaries, namely
Min Xin Properties Limited and Minxin Suzhou.

The maturity profile of the bank loans is as follows:

AEEREXAT

Group and Company
2008 2007
EETFT BT T
HK$’000 HKS’000
F—FRN Within 1 year 89,590 40,422
ZR—FERMER More than 1 year but within 2 years 53,946 89,636
ZHRBMEEREER More than 2 years but within 5 years — 53,952
143,536 184,010

ZERTEFFEREBRITALEIRE
IEZEFTE » 2008F 12831 HHER
FERNERAE28E (2007F 128318 : 5.3
E) o

I P A5 B

BESBERASELINERZEZRER
BB 2 FiE16.5% (20075 : 17.5%) Kk &
B A b 557 18 2 $ 2 25% (20074 & 25%)
E2EEE - EBLAERAN K ERH
BEEREHHNKEERE  MELFR
BRI RE—BMHKE IR ASELRR
SHEERELEMSHEBETHIKE -

32

These bank loans were bearing interest at a spread over
Hong Kong Interbank Offered Rate and the effective
interest rate at 31st December 2008 was 2.8% per annum
(31st December 2007:5.3%).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred taxation is calculated in full on temporary
differences under the liability method using a taxation rate
of 16.5% (2007: 17.5%) for Hong Kong taxation and 25%
(2007:25%) for Mainland China taxation. Deferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes
relate to the same fiscal authority.
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8 T B A B () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
EERBEE (BB 2BFBOT : The movement on the deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
account is as follows:
AEE AATF
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETFIT| BY T | BETT| BE¥ T
HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HKS'000
H1B1H At 1st January (6,223) (28,790) (6,418) (28,854)
TEFEBERRK Deferred taxation charged
MR 2 IELER IR to current year’s
income statement (305) (4,006) (783) (4,137)
HEEERESM Deferred taxation charged
‘EEHNR directly to investment
ZIEFEFG 18 revaluation reserve = (20,763) — (20,763)
HRIFERAZIEEBIIE  Deferred taxation
de-recognised — 47,336 — 47,336
®12A318 At 31st December (6,528) (6,223) (7,201) (6,418)

EEFMEHEEEEEEB KR Z T
BRARRERBUGH SR MBAMEE 2
FIBERER - A2008%F 128318 » &KR&
EEMFTRERBIBLYER1.86FE T
(2007 : #7851 5008 7T) ] 45 88 LUK

HARRBRBUWA o LWERIEBIWER
H e

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the related
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At
31st December 2008, the Group has estimated
unrecognised tax losses of approximately HK$186 million
(2007: approximately HK$159 million) to carry forward
against future taxable income. These tax losses have no
expiry date.
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AESE i 15 B (4

FRELEFEHEERABZEE (B2E
—EBI R 2 A ERIK SR BT

32

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities

(prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows:

A T Iy A4 Bt £ A Deferred income tax liabilities
PN The Group
MEBRFERERBEYEERL THHESHEE
Accelerated tax ZAF{E
depreciation and Fair value gains on
investment properties available-for-sale B8
revaluation financial assets Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
BETL | BETw | BEFR | BETn | BEFR | BETT
HKs'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000
W1A1R At 1st January 8,824 4,214 - 26,573 8,824 30,787
HERKNR Charged to income statement 1,102 4,610 — = 1,102 4,610
EREREEMRES Charged directly to investment
Mk revaluation reserve - = — 20,763 — 20,763
HIETER De-recognised — — — (47,336) - (47,336)
R128318 At 31st December 9,926 8,824 = = 9,926 8,824
AT The Company
MERERERBEYEERL TRHESHEE
Accelerated tax ZAFE
depreciation and Fair value gains on
investment properties available-for-sale okl
revaluation financial assets Total
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
BETL | BETT | BEFL | BETn | BEFR | BETT
HKs’000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HK$'000 | HK$'000 HKS'000
W1A1R At 1st January 6,737 2,657 - 26,573 6,737 29,230
HERFNR Charged to income statement 732 4,080 — = 732 4,080
EREREEMRES Charged directly to investment
Mk revaluation reserve - = — 20,763 — 20,763
HIETER De-recognised — — — (47,336) - (47,336)
RW12A318 At 31st December 7,469 6,737 — — 7,469 6,737
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32 IRIEFRAGHL () 32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
FRELEMESHEEREBEZEE ELRE The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities
—HHE 2 EREER) AT ¢ (@) (prior to offsetting of balances within the same taxation

jurisdiction) during the year is as follows: (Continued)
% HE i 15 B A Deferred income tax assets
PN The Group
FEstEH B8 o]
Accrued expenses Tax losses Total

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007

BETIT | BT | BETT | B¥TFr | B%Tr | BT

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
MW AR At 1st January (2) — (2,599) (1,997) (2,601) (1,997)
EEERTR Credited to income statement (2) ®) (795) (602) (797) (604)
W12A318 At 31st December (4) (2) (3,394) (2,599) (3,398) (2,601)

AN The Company
BiE
Tax losses

2008 2007

BEFIT BT T

HK$’000 HK$’000

M1A1H At 1st January (319) (376)

EEERNR Charged to income statement 51 57
®W12A31H At 31st December (268) (319)
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

The following amount, determined after appropriate
offsetting of deferred income tax assets and liabilities, is

. NCE AAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETFIT | BETFT | BEFIT| BEFT
HKS$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HKS’000
EIEFTEHREE Deferred income tax assets
#1218 B B U El To be recovered after
12 months 663 514 — —
#1218 B AU ] To be recovered within
12 months 10 11 — —
673 525 — _
ELEFEHEs Deferred income tax liabilities
#1218 B B E 1T To be settled after
12 months (7,201) (6,748) (7,201) (6,418)
(6,528) (6,223) (7,201) (6,418)
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33 EARNFEM A () 33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(b) AN (b) The Company
H{ibfEfHE £ Other reserves
AXBE REER
HES -1k
BE  BRikE Capital Investment REikF
Share Share redemption revaluation INit Retained ok
capital  premium reserve reserve  Sub-total profits Total
BETT EETT EETT EETT BETT BETT  BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
200851818 At 1st January 2008 459,429 384,620 47,086 904,176 1,335,882 91,772 1,887,083
ARLESRERE Change in fair value of
AFEEH available-for-sale
financial assets — — — (574,364) (574,364) — (574,364)
KEEEF Profit for the year = = = = = 24,113 24,113
KE Dividend — = = — = (27,566) (27,566)
20085 12H31H At 31st December 2008 459,429 384,620 47,086 329,812 761,518 88,319 1,309,266
ERIT: Representing:
2008F £KER 2 2008 proposed dividend 13,783
Hity Others 74,536
2008F 128318 Retained profits at
ZRERF 31st December 2008 88,319
2007%14818 At 1st January 2007 459,429 384,620 47,086 239,154 670,860 24,345 1,154,634
ARLESRERE Change in fair value of
AFEEH available-for-sale
financial assets — — — 688,044 688,044 — 688,044
RELFEHAR Deferred income tax
liabilities recognised — — — (20,763) (20,763) — (20,763)
RIEBRELFEHEE Deferred income tax
liabilities de-recognised — — — 47,336 47,336 — 47,336
HETHEESRHEE Disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets — — — (49,595) (49,595) — (49,595)
KEERF Profit for the year — — — — — 85,804 85,804
BE Dividend — — — — — (18,377) (18,377)
200781248318 At 31st December 2007 459,429 384,620 47,086 904,176 1,335,882 91,772 1,887,083
HRWT : Representing:
2007F ERER B 2007 proposed dividend 27,566
Hith Others 64,206
2007128318 Retained profits at
ZREBEF 31st December 2007 91,772
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33 BEARKFEEES (E)
(c) WA

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(c) Share capital

EBERFEAREEIRTREEIRNR

B UYERREZLAERE-FENR
S IEEERROUALFAREGE
ERERSHES -

(d) okt < A R BT I s
(i) R 127 2 35 A [T 1k 1 <

RO EEREFBORFBENER 2
B2 BB (D FMRH) 5548B1K K 55 49H 1%
P& -

(ii) 2
EERBERE

— FUSEBRIEEREBEII—RHLE
EHEmMEERECRMitES R
BRZEEBE) MR EEF &
Hj o

— REVEHBESHN(EREERRK
EHRENEEPE) (81 £[2005]149
) —RARESSRMEERL
—REE  Z—REBERIBED
BLRIE - WAERFTA E SRR
7 PR R B R E
18 -

2008 2007
RWE&E EEFT ROEE EBETFr
No. of shares ~ HK$’000 No. of shares HK$'000
EERE Authorised
EBR Ordinary shares of
BREEIT HKS$1 each 800,000,000 800,000 800,000,000 800,000
L@ S8BT Ordinary shares, issued
R RBAE and fully paid
EBR Ordinary shares of
ERBE 1T HKS1 each 459,428,656 459,429 459,428,656 459,429

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at shareholders’ meetings. All
ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i)  Share premium and capital redemption reserve

The application of the share premium and the capital
redemption reserve is governed by Sections 48B and 49H
respectively of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

(ii)  Statutory reserve
The statutory reserve mainly comprises the following:

— Non-distributable reserve set aside from retained
earnings in accordance with the Financial System Act
of Macao by a jointly controlled financial institution.

—  General reserve established and maintained within
equity holders’ equity of a jointly controlled financial
institution pursuant to Caijin [2005] No.49 “Measures
on General Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts for
Financial Institutions” issued by Ministry of Finance.
The general reserve was established through the
appropriation of income to cover unidentified
potential impairment losses.
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33

B A K fit i 4 ()
(d) &g kHE ()
(iii) BB RS

BEME S R RRE I —
FIR o

(iv) B fE
BEARfFESERE

—  2001F1 B 1 BRI EK S IR
ERENTMELENEERAER
EhEBEBENTRREE 8
RBEAEBBEN D FFESRENE
MR &

— HEZHNEERRENBLRANBE
FESHBESE(FERUB IR
ZKO

(v) BEFEMHME

REEMRABEEELR AR LEES
ERRANTHEESREENR A
FESEFE RERELRECER X
) e

(vi) SMEITHE A

HEMERBSB/ERESINELQ
A BEARRAREF SRR
REANFRZHREWRELENFBER
EH e

33 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii) General reserve

The general reserve is transferred from retained earnings
and is available for general use.

(iv) Capital reserve
The capital reserve comprises the following:

— goodwill and the excess of the Group’s interest in the
net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost of
business combination and the investment in
associates prior to 1st January 2001; and

— capitalisation of reserves for the purpose of
increasing the share capital of jointly controlled
entities and their subsidiaries in previous years.

(v) Investment revaluation reserve

The investment revaluation reserve comprises the
cumulative net change in the fair value of available-for-
sale financial assets (less related deferred tax credit/
charge) held by the Company and jointly controlled
entities.

(vi) Exchange translation reserve

The exchange translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising on translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities into the reporting currency of the
Company.
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34 R
(a) LMo RIRE IR B E

34 COMMITMENTS

(a) Commitments for expenditures on land use

) 7 i rights and properties held for development
F%E eI

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETIT| BT | BT | BT
HK$’000 HKS'000 HK$’000 HK$’000

EENEREE Contracted but not

provided for 179,673 2,546 — =

(b) W3k - MR BB B AR

property, plant and equipment

(b) Capital commitments for expenditures on

AEE FAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETFIT | BT | BEFrT | B%Fr
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ERENEREE Contracted but not
provided for 188 177 188 177
KRt AL ALER The Group's share of
AL 5] 25 capital commitments of
ERZER the jointly controlled
AEWT: entities not included
above is as follows:
EERNEREE Contracted but not
provided for 13 505
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35 HMAIRE
(a) AFMA
M2008%F 128318 » AEBERAQ TR

BAAURE S EEMARRRZ
ZBREEENRNOT :

LEASE COMMITMENTS

(a) As lessee

At 31st December 2008, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments payable under
non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AEE EAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BT | BT | BETIT| BT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
P& ih 2 Land and buildings
EF—FR Within one year 623 1,032 2,150 2,109
E_EZERFER In the second to
(BREEMSF) fifth year inclusive 105 466 1,973 156
728 1,498 4,123 2,265
(b)y HHFEA (b) As lessor

72008128310 » KEE R AN TR
15 1 AT 8 2 AR FE 6 T A R 2R B U ER
ZEREEENMRAOT :

At 31st December 2008, the Group and the Company had
future aggregate minimum lease payments receivable
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows:

AEE EAT
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
BETFIT| BT | BETT| BE¥ T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
P& i 2 Land and buildings
E—FA Within one year 5,810 5,101 3,476 1,621
E_FEZFERFR In the second to
(BREEEMF) fifth year inclusive 9,715 5,621 9,715 3,287
ERFERNUE In the sixth year and
thereafter 333 642 333 642
15,858 11,364 13,524 5,550

AEEHE EEREEYE ZHEEF

HH—F2AFT%5  HEHRzEE
DEEHESE -

The lease terms for business and residential properties
leased out by the Group range from one to six years and
with fixed rentals throughout the lease periods.
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36

HE Bl 36 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT
Ik A i 6 ) B AR B B 4 U Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash
A A IR outflow from operations
2008 2007
BETFIT BETF T
HKS’000 HKS$'000
PRt A% Profit before taxation 164,487 226,585
T Adjustments for:
B REEHERES Share of results of jointly controlled entities (170,605) (147,440)
i NCIE ¥ Share of results of associates (6,153) (14,449)
REMEEMGAVFEER Fair value gains on revaluation of investment
properties (3,201) (13,799)
BAFEEBBERIE Fair value losses/(gains) on listed equity
WEmREZRSLTFE securities measured at fair value
BiE k) through profit or loss 2,070 (260)
L ESREERESR Impairment loss on available-for-sale
financial assets 325 —
TEREE Depreciation and amortisation 6,356 4,855
HEREMERSE Gain on disposal of investment properties (1,725) —
HETREESHEERS Gain on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets — (49,655)
HEMHE BBRZEEE Loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 23 6
RITERFEWA Interest income from bank deposits (5,837) (6,520)
FE & H Interest expenses 7,460 9,622
BE 5 W2 F 2R Net exchange gains (2,386) (9,345)
MBEEEHER Changes in working capital:
- {5 R RE AL Increase in land use right = (305,759)
EEES A (B h0) (Increase)/decrease in deferred acquisition
costs (2,837) 2,917
1R B FE UL FR (8 hm),/ SRl D (Increase)/decrease in insurance receivable (5,565) 2,874
BREBREERD Decrease in reinsurance assets 2,481 2,965
HtEWBR TR A/ (3 hn) Decrease/(increase) in other debtors 48 (250)
BEARREZEEEM Increase in prepayments and deposits (9,994) (819)
REEHRD Decrease in insurance contracts (3,369) (14,245)
R B FE A R4 N Increase in insurance payable 4,459 596
HiEARFRESERREY  Decrease in other creditors and accruals (679) (13,426)
BWERE (BD) (Decrease)/increase in deposits received (79,426) 26,694
5 =58 Exchange difference (232) 1,634
RETHRESRHE FE Net cash outflow from operations (104,300) (297,219)
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37

B YN

RIRFNREMBEHE - WAKREERE
HEEREEEGZA T ETBER
RERRILBEBEEARE  SIRZTF
R RMAREERZATIZHEES
FHEEAZE  EAREARERH
B BEEATAUBEA BNEEEE
AE TERRORER FEARR
ERE) REMERE - UREBEZAEER
EBEEATEAZENER  LEEH
BALHERAL -

BRRAGE B IRR A M D KT S -
FEBMEEEEBBERNETZERS
BEALIXRZRENOT :

(@) 7A2008%F12A31H » KEBRARQ
AEERRRES S REE 2 TR
A BIEETE®9,4618 7T 20074 :
BH£3,0188 ) kB 158,386E T
(20074 : BH1,88587T) o It
FERIRE L — R ERRTE -
AEBRARNTRREFEEHILMESE
HA B WA BB 2288 JT (2007
FB¥1258 ) R E¥1958 T
(20074 : BHEBE TT) ©

(b) FAREEN—FRMBATT —F
HEZEHEEENEEMEESHNE
REWA (EHRAELR) G5B
4878 T (20074 : B¥3788
Jt) o WERAREERR 2 REH
AEBWNEME=2FF &R
RBII2ERERE -

(0 AATEFERREEERADA
[EEH)ZNEEEEBE188E T
(20074 : B¥188E T) - EAH
RE—HEBHREH - LEER
% BRREHEEEFAQTEER
B8R o

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, parties are considered to be related to the
Group if the Group has the ability, directly or indirectly, to
control the party or exercise significant influence over the
party in making financial and operating decisions, or vice
versa, or where the Group and the party are subject to
common control or common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals (being members of key
management personnel, significant shareholders and/or
their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, significant related party
transactions which were carried out in the normal course
of the Group’s business are as follows:

(@ As of 31st December 2008, the Group and the
Company had deposits with jointly controlled
financial institutions totaling HK$94.61 million (2007:
HK$30.18 million) and HK$83.86 million (2007:
HK$18.85 million) respectively. The deposits carry
interest at normal commercial rates and have
generated interest income of HK$2.28 million (2007:
HKS$1.25 million) and HK$1.95 million (2007: HK$0.86
million) to the Group and the Company for the year.

(b) Gross insurance premium less commission paid
totaling HK$4.87 million (2007: HK$3.78 million) was
derived from business referred to a subsidiary by a
jointly controlled entity during the year. Those
insurance policies underwritten by the Group were
contracted at prices and terms not less favourable
than those contracted with other third party
customers of the Group.

(¢)  An amount of HK$1.88 million (2007: HKS$1.88
million) was paid to Vigour Fine Company Limited
(“Vigour Fine”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, for the provision of certain management
services which include the provision of directors to
the Board of Directors of the Company pursuant to
a management agreement.
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37

38

H BB L2 5 ()
d) ETEEEAS

SRITHAEE E20084 K& 200745

(d) Key management personnel

37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The senior executives’emolument for the year ended

NRANBLEFEZ2MESWT - 31st December 2008 and 2007 are detailed as
follows:

2008 2007

BT T BT T

HK$’000 HKS’000

B <& Fees 1,200 1,050
& EEREMZE Salaries, housing and other

B~ REYFE allowances, and benefits in kind 7,025 7,545
EIRERIETEIHR Contributions to retirement

benefit scheme 72 72

i Bonus 3,460 4,030

11,757 12,697

A HREIH 38 POST BALANCE SHEET DATE EVENTS

BRRAGETBRREMBoEE
N EEAREESENREREN
T

200938128 » N A BH —KE#E
B NT - HBEBEERAR (M84])
KEOHEHERLURBEAKEESRAA
BEBLUREBE)MNEEEHE(BERLE
EBE)ET—AHE UARE
12,2008 7T (BN E¥13,8548 7T) 19
RESEHILIRE 2 E70%KEHE
FERILEEEMH -

RIZEBHKISE B8 LIRBEDIN20085F
12B31HZBRHEE @ st AEEEWGZ
HEWFELERE1,8008 T (BFZIER
SERETAMES) @ IR IBEHEAZU
Bz EARE12,2008 T (SEA B
13,8548 7t) R ZRHE (K5t R E# 1L
IRBE¥2007F E K 2008F KR Fi B %K 2
DIRA R 2,280 Jt (FEN B 2,589

e —

HT))HE -

In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the
consolidated financial statements, a summary of
significant post balance sheet date events are disclosed
as follows:

On 12th March 2009, Hong Kong Vigorous Limited
(“"Vigorous”), an indirect associate of the Company, had
entered into an agreement with the joint venture partners
(“Maanshan JV Partner”) of Maanshan Huan Tong Highway
Development Limited (“Maanshan Huan Tong”) to sell the
entire 70% equity interest in the Maanshan Huan Tong held
by Vigorous to the Maanshan JV Partner for a consideration
of RMB122 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$138.54 million).

It is estimated that, based on the carrying value of the
Vigorous's interest in Maanshan Huan Tong as at 31st
December 2008, a gain on disposal of approximately
HK$18 million (subject to finalisation upon completion of
the transaction) will be shared by the Group, based on the
consideration of RMB122 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$138.54 million) to be received by
Vigorous and such carrying value after taking into account
the distributions from profits after taxation for 2007 and
2008 of RMB22.8 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$25.89 million) by Maanshan Huan Tong.
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTY INTERESTS
HELD FOR INVESTMENT

N BuogE
FE{EHE 2 AmE

HYEHEH Group’s Approximate  IREFAR

Lease  attributable gross floor Existing

g Location expiry interest area use
(%) (FJ5 R sq.ft.)

(1) UBEH i & R iE847-86555 Shops 7 &8 on ground floor including 2049 100 14,841 [EES
KRB T HAL73E K85 store 8 on the cockloft therein and Commercial
e EE  1BRUERE the whole of 1st and 2nd floors

Winfield Building
847-865 Canton Road, Yaumatei
Hong Kong
2 BEEBEREE IR Apartment A, 34/F of Tower | 2060 100 1,276 %
SEFEUEAZE Park Towers Residential
1 King's Road, Causeway Bay
Hong Kong

B) PEARRABEBRABMT 22/F and 23/F, Worldwide Plaza 2044 100 41,288 [SES

AMEIS8RIRRESR 2ER23E 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou Commercial
The People’s Republic of China

@) PEARKNEREERMD Carpark Nos. #24 to #28 and #42 to #48 2044 100 5,227 [SES

AR 1585 R IES 158 Wusi Road, Fuzhou Commercial

B TE#24 T $28 K #42E #48

The People’s Republic of China
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